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Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
 

ϭ  

 

Chairman’s Report 
For year ending 30 June 2020 
 
OƵƌ CŽŵƉaŶǇ ViƐiŽŶ 
 
To be the best customer connected bank in our region. 
 
OƵƌ PƵƌƉŽƐe 
To be your bank supporting our communities 
 
CŽŵƉaŶǇ TƌaŶƐfŽƌŵaƚiŽŶ 
The board is proud for us to be selected as the first Bendigo Community Bank in Australia to commence 
transformation into a customer focused bank of the future. 
 
The company has been undergoing this process for some months with exciting changes for the company during the 
ϮϬϮϭ financial year including: 
 

o The board is delighted to welcome Tristan Scott who joined us in September ϮϬϮϬ as group Senior 
Manager to oversee our four branches and implement plans and processes to enable the company to meet 
its growth expectations and strategies into the future. 

o Appointment of our first Business Development Manager, and we welcome back Kerryn Vincart to this 
position. 

o Appointment of a Local Engagement Officer to better engage with our local community and we welcome 
Zoe Reinke who commenced in August ϮϬϮϬ. 

o Development of a new organisational structure to enable branches to better service our customers. The 
objective is to run our four branches as one company instead of the silo approach experienced by the 
existing structure. Some resources will be shared, and some centralised. Loan processing will be 
transferred to a central hub headed by Lisa Young who has transferred from Tewantin Branch. 
Congratulations to Lisa on her appointment. This strategy will aim to free our staff from important 
paperwork, meaning there is more time for meaningful customer engagement.  

o A changed role for Ian Williams who will be working with our community on a part time basis to identify 
Major Legacy and Hero Projects to which we can direct our shared community profits, giving a benefit not 
only to recipients in the short term, but also into the future. 

o Sponsorships will have a more professional approach including an expectation of mutual benefit. 
 

There are still some structural changes to come including improvements to the branch operating rhythm. We hope 
to be finished this stage of the transformation closer to Christmas ϮϬϮϬ. 
 
All in all, the board is excited by these developments which will increase the size and capability of our branches to 
grow our profits so that we can invest even more into our communities.  
 
CŽŽƌŽǇ BƌaŶch RefƵƌbiƐhŵeŶƚ 
 
The company completed its second branch transformation project in Cooroy after the last of the big four closed its 
doors. Like Tewantin it is a bright, friendly, modern customer-focused branch with community space for local 
artworks and product displays. 
 
All local shareholders are invited to visit our transformed branches in Tewantin and Cooroy. Please feel free to 
introduce yourself to our staff and say hello. 
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COVIDͲϭϵ 
 
Like most local businesses, the global pandemic has been a real challenge for staff, customers and the Company. 
To be COVID-ϭϵ safe, many constraints were implemented as well as in-branch community activities being 
curtailed. Staff had the added pressure of dealing with stressed customers. 
 
I would like to thank and congratulate all our staff for coping so well with the COVID-ϭϵ situation and operating 
within the changed circumstances to look after our customers in the best possible way. 
 
The financial risks associated with COVID-ϭϵ are regularly monitored by our Finance Committee. As previously 
advised to the National Stock Exchange where the company is listed, there is minimal impact envisaged at this 
time. 
 
ReƚiƌiŶg DiƌecƚŽƌ 
 
We were sad to lose the last of our original Directors namely Jay Pashley who worked so hard and so long for his 
community in Marcoola. We wish Jay all the best for the future and thank him for an extraordinary job as a board 
member. 
 
YeaƌͲeŶd ϯϬƚh JƵŶe ϮϬϮϬ ƌeƐƵlƚƐ 
 
Defying trends reported by other sectors of the banking industry, our profit after tax increased by over ϭϮй. 
Pleasingly the footings, revenue, community benefit, number of accounts, number of customers, profit before tax 
and community benefit, all grew compared to the previous year. 
 
This is an outstanding result and I thank the staff and Directors for their contribution. 
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Financial Snapshot since 200ϴ/ϵ onwards 
 
 Financial Snapshot     

 Shareholder  Community Gross 
Profit pre 

tax/ Profit Profit 

 Dividends Benefit Revenue Community 
before 

Tax 
After 

Tax 

 Cents per $1     Benefit     

 Share $000 $000  $000 $000 $000 

            
200ϴ/ϵ ϱ ϰϱ ϭ͕ϳϱϳ Ϯϵϳ ϮϱϮ ϭϲϵ 

            
200ϵ/10 ϳ͘ϱ ϴϲ Ϯ͕ϬϮϭ ϰϴϯ ϯϵϳ Ϯϳϵ 

            
2010/11 ϴ ϵϭ Ϯ͕ϮϬϬ ϰϭϴ ϯϮϳ ϮϮϰ 

            
2011/12 ϵ͘ϱ ϮϮϬ Ϯ͕Ϯϵϴ ϰϰϲ ϮϮϲ ϭϲϯ 

            
2012/13 ϴ͘ϭϱ ϭϵϴ Ϯ͕ϯϴϵ ϰϴϲ Ϯϴϴ ϮϬϬ 

            
2013/14 ϳ͘ϲϰ ϭϱϵ Ϯ͕ϯϭϲ ϯϮϬ ϭϲϭ ϭϭϭ 

            

2014/15 ϲ 
               

ϭϮϴ             Ϯ͕ϰϯϬ  
                    

ϯϰϬ  
            

ϮϭϮ  ϭϰϳ 

            

2015/16 ϳ 
               

ϭϰϬ             Ϯ͕ϱϰϱ  
                    

ϯϭϭ  
            

ϭϳϭ  ϭϭϰ 
            

2016/17 ϲ͘ϱ 
               

Ϯϭϰ             Ϯ͕ϳϰϬ  
                    

ϰϴϲ  
            

ϮϳϮ  ϭϴϯ 

            

2017/1ϴ ϱ 
               

ϭϲϯ             Ϯ͕ϵϲϱ  
                    

ϰϲϮ  
            

ϯϬϬ  Ϯϭϱ 

            

201ϴ/1ϵ ϰ͘ϱ 
               

ϭϴϬ             ϯ͕ϮϮϳ  
                    

ϰϳϯ  
            

Ϯϵϯ  ϮϬϰ 

            

201ϵ/20 ϰ͘ϱ 
               

ϮϬϳ             ϯ͕ϯϬϵ  
                    

ϱϮϴ  
            

ϯϮϮ  ϮϮϵ 

 7ϵ.2ϵ            1,ϴ31      
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SƚaƚiƐƚicƐ 
 
We did see growth in the size of our book but we experienced a higher than normal number of loan paydowns and 
discharges. Customer numbers increased but the impact of five months of COVID-ϭϵ restrictions was evident. 
Interestingly, but not surprisingly, there was a decrease in over the counter transactions as customers changed 
their banking habits to use the internet. 
 

Statistical Snapshot    
 Footings Footings  Account Customer  Counter 

 (Book) Growth Numbers Numbers Transactions 

      

2015/16 330 26 
       
12,ϴ6ϵ  

          
ϵ,1ϵ4           75,675  

      

2016/17 360 30 
       
13,463  

          
ϵ,4ϵ2           75,ϴ61  

      

2017/1ϴ 403 43 
       
14,66ϵ  

       
10,377           7ϴ,7ϴ3  

      

201ϴ/1ϵ 456 53 
       
16,125  

       
11,016           ϴ2,2ϵ5  

      

201ϵ/20 46ϴ 12 
       
17,275  

       
11,254           72,231  

 
 
GƌŽǁƚh 
 
We have continued to set ourselves ambitious growth targets. The more we grow the greater our revenue and in 
turn, the greater the profits available for us to re-distribute back into our communities. By growing, we will be 
providing more community focused banking that improves the financial security and successes of our customers.  
We particularly want to review methods by which we can attract new and long-term customers in the small 
business and millennial segments, while increasing our share of the younger family demographic. 
 
Too many of our customers are not getting the full benefit of what we can offer, and we wish to progressively 
address this by the continued development of improved customer engagement. 
 
PeŽƉle 
 
We will be allocating time and effort to make sure our Branch Managers and their staff receive the best possible 
support we can provide. There will be increased staff training throughout the year.  We know we can do better in 
this area and are actively working with the Bendigo Bank team at the present time.  
 
On behalf of the board I need to thank all our staff, and especially our Branch Managers, for their contributions to 
the business and the local communities in which their branches operate. They spend many hours after work and 
weekends supporting their community activities, and we really appreciate their efforts. We would especially like to 
thank Mark Gielis (MarcoolaͿ and Sam Atholwood (CooroyͿ for stepping into the Relief Branch Manager roles as we 
go through the process of restructuring. 
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GŽǀeƌŶaŶce aŶd CƵlƚƵƌe 
 
During the past year, the Board has continually focused on the key areas which it believed some effort was 
required. They included, 

aͿ Making sure our organisation has sufficient resources to manage growth  
bͿ Making sure we have the right people, in the right numbers in the right roles  
cͿ Making sure we have a culture across our business that reflects Bendigo Bank’s brand promise and 

importantly we are always treating our customers in a fair and transparent manner, and, 
dͿ Ensuring successful implementation of our transformation to our new organisational structure to achieve 

our longer-term growth objectives. 
 
Treating our customers fairly and transparently is an overriding priority. 
 
The BŽaƌd 
 
Following best practice, we continually review the skill sets available to the Board against the priority objectives we 
have set the business. We are fortunate to have such a high-quality Board of Directors which is allowing us to work 
with Bendigo corporate to upgrade and rework many legacy processes which need modernisation. Significant 
progress has been made on many fronts including the restructuring of Board committees, and I am grateful for all 
our Directors who provide considerable time and effort on the business. 
 
During the year it was agreed Directors should receive a modest increase of some ΨϮϬϬ to their monthly fees to 
partly compensate for out of pocket expenses including travelling costs and to offset their considerable amount of 
time and effort and risks of being so actively involved in our business. I am very aware that many directors provide 
support way in excess of this amount, and modest compensation is more than well merited. Your Directors remain 
primarily volunteers, and the amount of time and effort received from all our Directors is enormously appreciated. 
 
I thank all the directors for their contribution, input, and many hours of work to ensure the continued wellbeing of 
the company, and especially those who chair Board Committees. I thank Deputy Chair Elizabeth Reynolds for 
stepping in so capably when necessary. 
 
I would like to thank our Board administrator Lou Vincart for all his hard work and dedication over the last year.  
 
CŽŶƚƌŽlƐ aŶd RiƐk MaŶageŵeŶƚ 
 
Our Community Bank enjoys an excellent relationship with Bendigo Bank. We adopt, and are reliant on, their 
process, standards and controls. These have held us in good stead over many years. The Board has progressively 
worked through a number of potential risk areas to make sure we fully understand each risk and how they can best 
be mitigated. As both Bendigo Bank and the Board work through our change program, we aim to fully understand 
any risks that changes may create, and ensure we understand the required checks and balances involved. To us, 
good governance and effective risk management is a key to ensuring our customers get great, but also safe, 
services.  
 
Board reporting is now streamlined and efficient. Our central archive is as secure as possible and working well in 
our decision-making processes.  
 
OƵƌ CŽŵŵƵŶiƚǇ EŶgageŵeŶƚ 
 
Our community benefit has now exceeded Ψϭ.ϴmillion – a figure of which we are intensely proud.  
 
We have a clear duty of care to make sure we invest these funds wisely and to support projects which clearly will 
make for a better community both short and long term. 
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I would like to thank Ian Williams, our previous Marketing and Community Connections Manager for his efforts 
over the last ϭϮ months in supporting our Managers and our Sponsors and especially during his time on extended 
leave. 
 
MaƌkeƚiŶg 
 
Bendigo Corporate Bank has just embarked on a far-reaching national brand and product marketing plan both in 
traditional and digital mediums. It is hoped that this proactive campaign will increase customer enquiries and brand 
awareness. It is worth noting that Bendigo and Adelaide Bank is continually listed as one of the top ϭϬ most trusted 
brands in Australia, and we would like to do our part in keeping it there.  
 
Oƚheƌ ƚhaŶkƐ 
 
Thanks again must go to all the Corporate Staff, both State and National at Bendigo Bank, who have helped and 
supported us over the last year. Specifically, I would like to thank our Regional Manager Rohan Quirey and State 
Manager Gavin Holden who have both provided us with significant support and resources. 
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Tewantin Noosa Manager’s Report for year ending 30 June 2020 
 

 
The ϮϬϭϵ/ϮϬϮϬ financial year has not only been exciting, it has 
also been challenging for everyone at the Tewantin Noosa 
Community Bank.  The branch has now been trading for a little 
over ϭϳ years and this last year our business has grown by just 
under ΨϭϮM which takes our footings to ΨϭϮϭM.  We have 
opened ϴϭϱ new accounts which equate to net growth in our 
customer base of over ϰ.ϱй year on year.  We are proudly 
now looking after over ϯ,ϱϬϬ customers. 
 
This year has been challenging as locally and nationally, we 
have experienced and survived the devastating bushfires.  Our 

customers, community partners and staff had not quite recovered from the bushfires when the COVID-ϭϵ global 
pandemic, literally brought the country to a standstill overnight.  As an “essential service” we kept out branch open 
through the national lockdown, though social distancing did see it look very different.   I am very proud of my team 
and how they pulled together to continue to take care of our customers in these unprecedented times. 
 
COVID-ϭϵ has affected almost all our community partners, which has seen many community functions cancelled, 
this continues to be the case. 
 
We have in this last year strengthened our community partnerships with some amazing groups such as Sunshine 
Butterflies, Noosa Pirates Rugby League Club, Noosa Dolphin’s Rugby Union Club, and the Noosa Heads Surf Life 
Saving Club. 
 
I would like to thank the SCCFSL Board and Ian Williams for the many hours of work they contribute in supporting 
us and our community groups. 
 
As always, it is a team effort contributing to our continued success, through this challenging year, our dedicated 
branch staff have dug very deep to provide a genuinely caring experience to our customers.  Our current team is 
Lisa Young, Kerri Wright, Kristin Stuber, Sue Bamford, Alison Mills, Maria Mitchell, and Ella Dawes.  I would like to 
thank each one of them for their commitment and support. 
 
Finally, I would like to thank our shareholders and customers for their continued support as they not only choose to 
bank with us but also to act as our advocates in their daily dealings by personally recommending our products and 
services. 
 
The best compliment that anyone can give us is a referral 
to you family, friends, and business associates. 
 
I look forward to seeing you around town or perhaps at a 
networking event as and when they recommence. 
 
 
Linda Oliver 
Branch Manager 
Tewantin Noosa Branch 
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Cooroy and Pomona Manager’s Report 
for Year ending 30 June 2020 

 
 
 

As Acting Senior Branch Manager, I am responsible 
for the operations of Cooroy and Pomona Branches 
which are closely aligned Branches within the SCCFSL 
Community Branch network, sharing resources and 
working together. 
 
This has been a successful year for the Branches with 
combined footings of ΨϮϬϱmill as at June ϯϬth ϮϬϮϬ, 
Cooroy Ψϭϳϰmill and Pomona Ψϯϭmill respectively 
and new Customers for Cooroy increasing to ϰ,ϮϲϮ 
and Pomona ϳϰϭ. 
 
December ϮϬϭϵ was an exciting time for Cooroy 
Branch with the opening of our newly refurbished 
Branch, which reflects the Branch of the Future 
model designed by Bendigo Bank.  Customers love 
the new spacious modern Branch surroundings.  As a 
result of the increased floor space, the Branch is now 
a showcase for local Artists, with exhibits in the 
Branch changing every ϲ weeks.  We also have a 
space for local Businesses to create a promotional 
display, with a new business on display each month. 
 
December ϮϬϭϵ was also the month the 
Commonwealth Bank closed their Cooroy Branch and 
removed their ATM machine, effectively withdrawing 

all local services from our Community.  I believe this 
has strengthened our reputation and relationship 
within the local Community, as we continue to 
promote our commitment to providing local banking 
in Cooroy, and indeed Pomona where we are the 
only bank in Town. 
 
During the triumphs and challenges of the year, I 
would like to thank the SCCFSL Board for the support 
they are always willing to offer our Branch staff and 
community.  I would also like to acknowledge our 
staff in Cooroy and Pomona branches including Jo-
Anne Winter, Meredith Mason, Sheridan Gallaway, 
Cindy Hazeldene, Trent Kirkwood and Jackie 
Drummond for their dedication to our customers. 
 
Finally, to our valued shareholders and customers I 
offer my thanks for your continued support and 
advocacy, which looking forward into ϮϬϮϭ will 
ensure our continued success, and commitment to 
providing local banking services to the people in 
Cooroy, Pomona and surrounds. 
 
 

 
Samantha Atholwood 
Acting Senior Branch Manager 
Cooroy and Pomona 
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Marcoola Manager’s Report for Year ending 30 June 020 
Although ϮϬϭϵ/ϮϬ has seen unprecedented changes and challenges it has still been another great year at Marcoola 
Community branch. 
 
The branch was able to contribute more than ΨϱϬ,ϬϬϬ to assist Not for Profit groups in the North Shore/Coolum 
area with positive community outcomes. Our three surf life saving clubs at Coolum, Marcoola and Mudjimba 
receive our financial support and strong business relationships continue. We contributed substantial funds to the 
upgrade of the Mudjimba clubhouse. Financial support and strong relationships were also fostered with Coolum 
Business Θ Tourism, Coolum District Netball, Coolum Hearts, Mudjimba Community Kindergarten, North Shore 
community centre, Pacific Paradise and Coolum State schools PΘCs, Coolum Theatre Players, Twin Waters 
Residents Association just to name a few. 
 
Some of the event highlights we supported were Home Loan appreciation night, North Shore Christmas, Twin 
Waters carols, under ϴ’s day, Marcoola Rocks and our branch always features in musicals and play productions 
through Coolum Theatre Players. 
 
We saw some changes with pioneer of Marcoola Community Branch board member Jay Pashley finally hanging up 
his boots as a director on the board. Jay basically was the driving force in establishing the branch at Marcoola and 
he served on the board for ϭϱ years. Thanks again Jay. 
 
Our Branch Manager Kerryn Vincart finished in December ϮϬϭϵ as she dipped her toe into politics. Good news is 
Kerryn has returned in August ϮϬϮϬ as our new Business Development Manager. 
 
We continue to receive great support from the board who give up their time and provide amazing energy to the 
business. The board have a clear vision and direction and we look forward to exciting times. Tony Freeman flies the 
flag for our Marcoola branch. Tony is always camera ready in hand for an event photo and he keeps his ear open 
for community news. Thanks Tony. 
 
Thanks to the Marketing Committee for keeping our story and contribution known in the community. Thanks to 
Lou Vincart for his diverse range of support that he brings to the branch and SCCFSL. 
 
The branch had a book value of Ψϭϰϭ million at end of the financial year which was a fantastic result considering 
the COVID-ϭϵ impacts and interest rate squeeze. The branch had significant profitability through this period. I 
would like to give a big shout out to the staff at Marcoola who adapted to the change of management and turned 
up every day during COVEDϭϵ to help our customers through the financial stresses during this crazy time. Stephen 
and Donna went above and beyond to help our customers and be a shoulder to cry on, if needed. Maria and 
Bronwyn as our part-timers were always willing to support the team and cover any gaps. 
 

Thanks also to our Working Together team (Regional 
Management, Business banking, Protection specialist, 
Financial planners etcͿ who helped contribute to the 
branch success. Karl Doss as relief helped the team through 
the transition as well. 
 
We look forward to the board’s strategy being 
implemented in ϮϬϮϬ/Ϯϭ to achieve even greater growth 
which will ultimately lead to increased positive community 
contributions. 
 
Mark Gielis 
Acting Branch Manager - Marcoola 
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Directors' Report 
 
The directors present the financial statements of the company for the financial year ended ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ. 
 
Directors 
 
The directors of the company who held office during or since the end of the financial year are: 
 
Rick Cooper 
Non-executive director  
Occupation: Retired 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Rick was National Manager for AustraliaΖs largest computer service 
company then Principal and owner of a successful Tewantin real estate business which was sold in ϮϬϬϳ. Rick has 
held positions on multiple community boards. He joined SCCFSL as a director in November ϮϬϬϲ. 
Special responsibilities: Finance and Audit Committee 
Interest in shares: ϯϬ,Ϭϵϯ ordinary shares 
 
David Green 
Non-executive director  
Occupation: Retired Accountant  
Qualifications, experience and expertise: After assisting small business operators on the Sunshine Coast for over Ϯϵ 
years with all accounting needs and business advisory requirements, David has retired to a more peaceful life 
enabling time with family and travelling with wife Carol. 
Special responsibilities: Chairman - Finance and Audit Committee 
Interest in shares: ϭϬ,ϬϬϬ ordinary shares 
 
Elizabeth Reynolds 
Non-executive director   
Occupation: Retired Lawyer 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Elizabeth has been a director since ϮϬϭϯ and is Deputy Chair. Qualified as 
a Barrister Θ Solicitor Elizabeth has practised, as both, in commercial and corporate law in NZ, London and 
Australia. Until recently was the principal of Reynolds Lawyers. She has been an executive director of Tourism 
Noosa Ltd for many years and a director of the Noosa Biosphere Ltd. 
Former directorships: Noosa Tourism Ltd 
Special responsibilities: Deputy Chair, Chair Sponsorship and Marketing Committee 
Interest in shares: nil share interest held  
 
Guy Hamilton 
Non-executive director 
Occupation: Board Θ Business Adviser 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Guy has held multiple senior management roles in financial services 
associated with developing or restructuring businesses in ϮϬн countries covering segments from Consumer Finance 
through to Corporate and Institutional Banking. He has had a ϯϱ-year career with HSBC Group and lived and 
worked in ϵ countries. 
Special responsibilities: HR Committee 
Interest in shares: nil share interest held  
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Directors ;ConƚinƵedͿ 
 
Tony Freeman 
Non-executive director 
Occupation: Retired Business Manager 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Tony has a background in consumer marketing with experience in 
financial service, food, fashion, pharmaceuticals, toiletries and furniture. He worked for some large local and 
international companies. Tony is President of his local residentΖs association and has been a member of Rotary for 
Ϯϵ years in Sydney, Brisbane and the Sunshine Coast. 
Former directorships: Pine Rivers Community Finance Limited 
Special responsibilities: HR Committee, Sponsorship and Marketing Committee 
Interest in shares: nil share interest held 
 
Patricia Radge 
Non-executive director 
Occupation: Business Manager 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: B.Bus., Personnel Management Graduates course. Trish is owner and 
Business Manager of The Chartist, a stock market advisory service based in Noosa. TrishΖs expertise lies in 
compliance, business management and small business development. 
Special responsibilities: Finance and Audit Committee 
Interest in shares: nil share interest held 
 
Toby Bicknell 
Non-executive director  
Occupation: Human Resources Consultant 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Since graduating from the University of NSW in ϭϵϴϵ, TobyΖs business 
experience has included capital markets, financial services, telecommunications, healthcare, pharmaceuticals and 
more recently tourism, hospitality and leisure. Certificate of Governance Practice 
Special responsibilities: HR Committee 
Interest in shares: nil share interest held 
 
Jay Pashley 
Non-executive director (resigned Ϯϲ April ϮϬϮϬͿ 
Occupation: Real Estate Agent 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Jay is the owner of North Shore Realty, and has been a Director of SCCFSL 
since February ϮϬϬϰ. 
Special responsibilities: Marketing Committee 
Interest in shares: ϮϬ,ϬϬϬ ordinary shares 
 
Directors were in office for this entire year unless otherwise stated. 
 
No directors have material interest in contracts or proposed contracts with the company.    
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Company Secretary 
The company secretary is Patricia Radge. Patricia was appointed to the position of secretary on ϭ June ϮϬϭϴ. 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Patricia holds a Bachelor of Business and her experience includes 
managing a small financial services company since April ϮϬϬϬ. 
 
Principal activity 
The principal activity of the company during the financial year was facilitating Community Bank services under 
management rights of Bendigo and Adelaide Bank Limited (Bendigo BankͿ. 
 
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year. 
 
Operating results 
The profit of the company for the financial year after provision for income tax was: 
 

Year ended Year ended 
ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ ϯϬ June ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ Ψ 
ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ 

 
 

Operating and Financial Review 
 
Oǀeƌǀieǁ Žf ƚhe cŽŵƉaŶǇ 
The company is a franchisee of Bendigo Bank providing financial products and services to individuals, businesses and organisations 
throughout the local area via the Sunshine Coast Community Bank. While the branches offer the full suite of Bendigo Θ Adelaide 
Bank Limited products and services, margin earnings from firstly loans and then deposits are the predominant contributor to 
company results. 
 
The general nature of the business market for the company remains challenging and issues commented upon for the prior three 
financial years continue to persist. The company continues to endure historically low cash rates set by the Reserve Bank of 
Australia that have resulted in a corresponding decline in interest paid on deposit accounts, continuing the trend of lower than 
anticipated margins for this product group. Moreover, the market competition for home and other loans has made it difficult to 
achieve budgeted targets. The company continues to encourage staff to actively pursue new customers and product offerings to 
offset the intense competition from major financial service providers in the marketplace. 
 
Key metrics: 
 

Five-year summary of performance 
 

Unit ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ ϮϬϭϴ ϮϬϭϳ ϮϬϭϲ 

Operating revenue Ψ ϯ,ϭϯϮ,ϬϬϴ ϯ,ϬϲϮ,ϲϬϳ Ϯ,ϵϲϱ,Ϭϴϳ Ϯ,ϳϰϬ,ϯϰϭ Ϯ,ϱϰϰ,ϳϴϭ 
Earnings before interest, tax, 
depreciation, and amortisation 

Ψ ϲϱϯ,ϵϳϴ ϰϴϱ,ϴϴϴ ϰϴϱ,ϴϴϴ ϰϭϵ,ϳϬϬ ϯϮϯ,Ϯϲϯ 

Earnings before interest and tax Ψ ϰϯϭ,ϵϬϰ ϯϳϯ,ϱϮϴ ϯϳϭ,ϳϬϱ ϯϭϳ,ϴϬϴ Ϯϭϱ,ϴϰϳ 
Net profit after tax Ψ ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ Ϯϭϱ,ϭϳϱ ϭϴϮ,ϳϭϴ ϭϭϯ,ϴϯϭ 
Total assets Ψ ϰ,ϭϯϵ,ϵϭϲ ϯ,ϴϳϬ,Ϯϱϰ ϯ,ϯϴϰ,ϵϲϮ Ϯ,ϯϴϲ,ϲϴϵ Ϯ,Ϯϰϱ,ϳϮϰ 
Total liabilities Ψ Ϯ,ϱϳϵ,ϭϵϱ Ϯ,ϯϰϳ,ϴϰϯ ϭ,ϵϴϮ,ϭϲϱ ϭ,Ϭϴϴ,ϮϵϮ ϭ,ϬϭϬ,ϳϰϴ 
Total equity Ψ ϭ,ϱϲϬ,ϳϮϭ ϭ,ϱϮϮ,ϰϭϭ ϭ,ϰϬϮ,ϳϵϳ ϭ,Ϯϵϴ,ϯϵϳ ϭ,Ϯϯϰ,ϵϳϲ 
Net cash flow from operating activities Ψ ϱϵϭ,Ϯϭϴ ϵϱϬ,Ϭϲϴ ϯϱϯ,ϲϱϰ Ϯϳϯ,ϱϬϭ Ϯϱϲ,ϰϴϴ 

Business footingsϭ Ψm ϰϲϴ ϰϱϲ ϰϬϯ ϯϲϬ ϯϯϬ 
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Shareholder Returns 
 
 

Profit attributable to owners of the 
company 

Ψ ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ Ϯϭϱ,ϭϳϱ ϭϴϮ,ϳϭϴ ϭϭϯ,ϴϯϭ 

Basic earnings per share ₵ ϭϯ.ϰϱ ϭϮ.ϬϮ ϭϮ.ϲϯ ϭϬ.ϳϮ ϲ.ϲϴ 
Dividends paid Ψ ϳϲ,ϲϵϭ ϴϱ,Ϯϭϱ ϭϭϬ,ϳϳϱ ϭϭϵ,Ϯϵϳ ϭϬϮ,Ϯϱϱ 
Dividends per share ₵ ϰ.ϱϬ ϱ.ϬϬ ϲ.ϱϬ ϳ.ϬϬ ϲ.ϬϬ 
Net tangible assets per share ₵ ϴϮ.ϬϬ ϳϳ.ϭϯ ϲϴ.ϲϳ ϲϲ.ϲϬ ϲϰ.ϴϮ 
Price earnings ratio ₵ ϭϯ.ϰϱ ϭϮ.ϬϮ ϭϮ.ϲϯ ϭϬ.ϳϮ ϲ.ϲϴ 
Share price ₵ ϵϳ.ϬϬ ϵϳ.ϬϬ ϵϳ.ϬϬ ϵϬ.ϬϬ ϵϭ.ϬϬ 

 

ϭ This is a non‐IFRS measure of the business domiciled to the company from the franchisor. The footings is the underlying business 
which generates revenue under the Franchise Agreement. Business footings include loans, deposits, wealth products, and other 
business. 
Returns to shareholders increased through both dividends and capital growth. Dividends for ϮϬϮϬ were fully franked and it is 
expected that dividends in the future years will continue to be fully franked. 
 
Financial position 
The company continued to improve profitability for the financial year ended ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ with higher revenues as well as 
tighter cost control and as a result, the financial position of the company has also improved and remains relatively strong. 
Containment of costs during a period of lower margins remains a strong focus. 
 
The cash and cash equivalents position of the company reduced for the reporting year by Ψϯϳϯ,ϴϭϭ for a year-end balance of 
Ψϭϱϭ,ϰϭϲ. During the period an additional ΨϯϬϬ,ϬϬϬ was contributed to our mortgage loans which can be redrawn as required. 
The company continues to build a resilient balance sheet, ending June ϮϬϮϬ with net assets of Ψϭ,ϱϲϬ,ϳϮϭ and gross debt 
(excluding leasesͿ of Ψϭ,ϲϵϲ,ϵϱϴ. 
 
Gearing increased from the prior financial year to ϭϬϱй from ϵϰй. The companyΖs target gearing range is ϴϬй - ϵϬй, which was 
adjusted as a result of adopting AASB ϭϲ Leases from ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ bringing ΨϲϯϮ,ϲϳϮ on to the balance sheet. 
 
Drivers of business performance 
The results for the ϮϬϭϵ/ϮϬ financial year have been driven mainly by steady growth in mortgage lending resulting in revenue 
growth of Ϯй. Net interest margin returns under the revenue share arrangement have decreased following four official cash rate 
cuts by the Reserve Bank of Australia. 
 
In addition, COVID-ϭϵ greatly impacted the Australian economy in the second half of the financial year. The immediate impact is 
not expected to be significant in the current reporting results. Future reporting periods may see an increase in bad debt charges. 
 
Business strategies 
To address the current stage of development of the business and in recognition of the current financial circumstances, both in the 
economy and the observed impact upon the Bendigo profit share model, the Board has determined to continue the focus upon 
five broad directions: 
 
Strengthening our connection and level of engagement between important stakeholders and partners. 
Strengthening our Directors role in our business structure and key customer and community segments. 
Defining our future board skill and diversity mix and a structure that will deliver our Strategic Plan. 
 
Focusing our business on the most profitable growth opportunities using our own local marketing plans. 
Planning to achieve our future business performance expectations. 
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Future outlook 
The company believes there are opportunities to develop additional revenue through: 
Acquiring additional customers through greater community based events and a focus on local businesses. 
Improving the range and number of products and services, such as insurance, for each customer. 
The company anticipates that current market conditions will remain challenging during the forthcoming financial year. In this 
environment the company will focus upon increasing the number of customers and the uptake of products and services, thereby 
further improving revenue flow and profitability. 
 
Remuneration report 
Compensation for directors was announced to shareholders on ϯϭ May ϮϬϭϵ to begin on ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. This takes the form 
of re- imbursing directors for out-of-pocket expenses such as travel, computer costs and printing. The base for the 
chairperson is Ψϲ,ϬϬϬ per annum. The base for other directors is Ψϯ,ϲϬϬ per annum. 
 
Non-executive directors do not receive performance-related compensation and are not provided with retirement 
benefits apart from statutory superannuation. 
 
RemƵneƌaƚion inclƵding ƐƵƉeƌannƵaƚion foƌ ƚhe financial Ǉeaƌ ended ϯϬ JƵne ϮϬϮϬ 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Non-executive director remuneration   
Rick Cooper ϱ,ϰϱϬ - 
David Green ϯ,ϲϬϬ - 
Elizabeth Reynolds ϯ,ϴϬϬ - 
Guy Hamilton ϯ,ϲϬϬ - 
Tony Freeman ϯ,ϲϬϬ - 
Patricia Radge ϯ,ϲϬϬ - 
Toby Bicknell  ϯ,ϲϬϬ - 
Jay Pashley - - 

Total Ϯϳ,ϬϬϬ - 

 
 
Directors’ interests 
 

Director Balance at Start of the 
year 

Changes during the year Balance at end of the year 

Rick Cooper Ϯϲ,ϵϵϯ ϯ,ϭϬϬ ϯϬ,Ϭϵϯ 
David Green ϭϬ,ϬϬϬ - - 
Elizabeth Reynolds - - - 
Guy Hamilton - - - 
Tony Freeman - - - 
Toby Bicknell - - - 
Patricia Radge - - - 
Jay Pashley ϮϬ,ϬϬϬ - ϮϬ,ϬϬϬ 

 
 
No debentures or rights have been granted or options over such instruments in previous financial years or during the current 
financial year. 
 

10,000
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Dividends 
During the financial year, the following dividends were provided for and paid. The dividends have been provided for 
in the financial statements. 
 

 Cents per share Total amount Ψ 
Final fully franked dividend ϰ.ϱϬ ϳϲ,ϲϵϭ 
Total amount ϰ.ϱϬ ϳϲ.ϲϵϭ 

 
New Accounting Standards implemented 
The company has implemented a new accounting standard which has come into effect and is included in the results. AASB ϭϲ: 
Leases (AASB ϭϲͿ has been applied retrospectively without restatement of comparatives by recognising the cumulative effect of 
initially applying AASB ϭϲ as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. Therefore, the comparative 
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB ϭϭϳ: Leases. See note ϰ for further details. 
 
Significant changes in the state of affairs 
During the financial year, the Australian economy was greatly impacted by COVID‐ϭϵ. Bendigo Bank, as franchisor, announced a 
suite of measures aimed at providing relief to customers affected by the COVID‐ϭϵ pandemic. The relief support and uncertain 
economic conditions has not materially impacted the companyΖs earnings for the financial year. As the pandemic continues to 
affect the economic environment, uncertainty remains on the future impact of COVID -ϭϵ to the company’s operations. 
 
In the opinion of the directors there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the company that occurred during 
the financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or the financial statements. 
 
Events since the end of the financial year 
There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year that have significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the company the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the company, in future 
years. 
 
Likely developments 
The company will continue its policy of facilitating banking services to the community. 
 
Environmental regulation 
The company is not subject to any significant environmental regulation. 
 
Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers 
The company has indemnified all directors and the managers in respect of liabilities to other persons (other than the company or 
related body corporateͿ that may arise from their position as directors or managers of the company except where the liability 
arises out of conduct involving the lack of good faith. 
 
Disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium is prohibited by the confidentiality clause of the contract 
of insurance. The company has not provided any insurance for an auditor of the company or a related body corporate. 
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Directors’ meetings 
The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directorsͿ attended by each of the directors of the 
company during the financial year were: 
 

 Board Meetings Attended Committee Meetings Attended 
 Eligible Aƚƚended Eligible Aƚƚended 
Rick Cooper ϭϮ ϭϭ ϱ ϱ 
David Green ϭϮ ϭϮ ϱ ϱ 
Elizabeth Reynolds ϭϮ ϭϭ ϱ ϰ 
Guy Hamilton ϭϮ ϭϭ ϱ ϱ 
Tony Freeman ϭϮ ϭϮ ϱ ϱ 
Toby Bicknell ϭϮ ϭϮ ϱ ϱ 
Patricia Radge ϭϮ ϭϮ ϱ ϱ 
Jay Pashley ϭϬ ϳ ϱ ϱ 

 
Proceedings on behalf of the company 
No person has applied to the Court under section Ϯϯϳ of the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ for leave to bring proceedings on 
behalf of the company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party, for the purpose of taking 
responsibility on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceedings. 
 
No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the company with leave of the Court under section Ϯϯϳ 
of the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ. 
 
Non audit services 
The company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory duties where the auditorΖs 
expertise and experience with the company are important. Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor (Andrew 
Frewin StewartͿ for audit and non audit services provided during the year are set out in note Ϯϴ to the accounts. 
 
The board of directors has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and, in accordance 
with the advice received from the Audit Committee, is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is compatible 
with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ  for the following 
reasons: 
භ all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure they do not impact on the 
impartiality, integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and 
භ none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES ϭϭϬ 
Code of  Ethics for Professional Accountants, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditorΖs own work, acting 
in a management or decision making capacity for the company, acting as an advocate for the company or jointly sharing 
risks and rewards. 
 
Auditor’s independence declaration 
A copy of the auditorΖs independence declaration as required under section ϯϬϳC of the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ is set out 
on page ϴ. 
 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors at Tewantin, Queensland. 

 



 

Lead�auditor’s�independence�declaration�under�section�307C�of�the�Corporations�
Act�2001�to�the�directors�of�Sunshine�Coast�Community�Financial�Services�Limited�
�
�
As�lead�auditor�for�the�audit�of�Sunshine�Coast�Community�Financial�Services�Limited�for�the�year�ended�
30�June�2020,�I�declare�that,�to�the�best�of�my�knowledge�and�belief,�there�have�been:�
�
i) no�contraventions�of�the�auditor�independence�requirements�of�the�Corporations�Act�2001�in�relation�

to�the�audit;�and�
ii) no�contraventions�of�any�applicable�code�of�professional�conduct�in�relation�to�the�audit.��

� �
Andrew�Frewin�Stewart� Joshua�Griffin�
61�Bull�Street,�Bendigo�Vic�3550� Lead�Auditor�
Dated:�13�September�2020�
�
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Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other  
Comprehensive Income 
 
FŽƌ ƚhe Ǉeaƌ eŶded ϯϬ JƵŶe ϮϬϮϬ 
 

  
Notes 

ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Revenue from contracts with customers ϴ ϯ,ϭϯϮ,ϬϬϴ ϯ,ϬϲϮ,ϲϬϳ 

Other revenue ϵ ϭϳϳ,ϬϰϮ ϭϲϯ,ϱϮϴ 

Finance income ϭϬ ϯϯϳ ϰϯϯ 

Employee benefit expenses ϭϭcͿ (ϭ,ϳϳϴ,ϳϲϵͿ (ϭ,ϳϭϳ,ϮϬϳͿ 

Charitable donations, sponsorship, advertising and 
promotion 

 (ϮϬϲ,ϲϬϯͿ (ϮϳϬ,ϱϯϭͿ 

Occupancy and associated costs  (ϵϬ,ϳϮϴͿ (ϮϮϬ,ϮϵϳͿ 

Systems costs  (ϭϱϰ,ϭϭϴͿ (ϭϮϵ,ϮϰϴͿ 

Depreciation and amortisation expense ϭϭaͿ (ϮϮϮ,ϬϳϰͿ (ϭϭϮ,ϯϲϬͿ 

Finance costs ϭϭbͿ (ϭϬϵ,ϳϬϴͿ (ϴϭ,ϬϮϵͿ 

General administration expenses  (ϰϮϱ,ϭϵϭͿ (ϰϬϯ,ϯϵϳͿ 

Profit before income tax expense  ϯϮϮ,ϭϵϲ ϮϵϮ,ϰϵϵ 
 
Income tax expense 

 
ϭϮaͿ 

 
(ϵϮ,ϵϲϱͿ 

 
(ϴϳ,ϲϳϯͿ 

Profit after income tax expense  ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ 
    
Total Comprehensive income for the year attributable 
to the ordinary shareholders of the company 

 ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ 

 

Earnings per share  Ϊ Ϊ 
Basic and diluted earnings per share ϯϭaͿ ϭϯ.ϰϱ ϭϮ.ϬϮ 
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Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
Statement of Financial Position 
aƐ aƚ ϯϬ JƵŶe ϮϬϮϬ 

 Notes ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
  Ψ Ψ 
ASSETS    
Current assets    
Cash and cash equivalents ϭϯaͿ ϭϱϭ,ϰϭϲ ϯϳϯ,ϴϭϭ 
Trade and other receivables ϭϰaͿ ϭϭϮ,Ϭϳϭ ϳϱ,ϲϲϬ 
Current tax assets ϭϴaͿ Ϯϯϯ ϭϯ,ϳϲϲ 

Total current assets  Ϯϲϯ,ϳϮϬ ϰϲϯ,Ϯϯϳ 
    
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment ϭϱaͿ ϯ,ϮϰϬ,ϴϰϵ ϯ,ϭϵϱ,ϭϬϴ 
Right-of-use assets ϭϲaͿ ϰϳϮ,ϭϰϬ - 
Intangible assets ϭϳaͿ ϭϱϮ,Ϯϭϱ Ϯϭϭ,ϵϬϵ 
Deferred tax asset ϭϴbͿ ϭϬ,ϵϵϮ - 

Total non-current assets  ϯ,ϴϳϲ,ϭϵϲ ϯ,ϰϬϳ,Ϭϭϳ 
    
Total assets  ϰ,ϭϯϵ,ϵϭϲ ϯ,ϴϳϬ,Ϯϱϰ 
    
LIABILITIES    

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables ϭϵaͿ ϭϰϰ,ϴϱϴ ϲϲϵ,ϮϮϳ 
Loans and borrowings ϮϬaͿ ϮϮϰ,ϵϭϳ ϰϱ,ϰϲϬ 
Lease liabilities ϮϭbͿ ϯϬ,ϲϬϬ - 
Employee benefits ϮϯaͿ ϯϵ,ϲϴϯ ϯϮ,ϭϳϱ 

Total current liabilities  ϰϰϬ,Ϭϱϴ ϳϰϲ,ϴϲϮ 
    
Non-current liabilities    
Trade and other payables ϭϵbͿ ϱϵ,ϯϮϵ ϭϮϯ,ϵϱϭ 
Loans and borrowings ϮϬbͿ ϭ,ϰϳϮ,Ϭϰϭ ϭ,ϰϳϯ,Ϭϴϵ 
Lease liabilities ϮϭcͿ ϱϴϵ,ϭϴϳ - 
Provisions ϮϮaͿ ϭϴ,ϱϴϬ - 
Deferred tax liability ϭϴbͿ - ϯ,ϵϰϭ 

Total non-current liabilities  Ϯ,ϭϯϵ,ϭϯϳ ϭ,ϲϬϬ,ϵϴϭ 
    
Total liabilities  Ϯ,ϱϳϵ,ϭϵϱ Ϯ,ϯϰϳ,ϴϰϯ 
    
Net assets  ϭ,ϱϲϬ,ϳϮϭ ϭ,ϱϮϮ,ϰϭϭ 
EQUITY    

Issued capital ϮϰaͿ ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ 
Accumulated losses Ϯϱ (ϲϮ,ϯϰϲͿ (ϭϬϬ,ϲϱϲͿ 

Total equity  ϭ,ϱϲϬ,ϳϮϭ ϭ,ϱϮϮ,ϰϭϭ 
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Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
aƐ aƚ ϯϬ JƵŶe ϮϬϮϬ 

 
 Notes Issued Capital Accumulated 

Losses 
Total equity 

  Ψ Ψ Ψ 
Balance at ϭ July ϮϬϭϴ  ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ (ϮϮϬ,ϮϳϬͿ ϭ,ϰϬϮ,ϳϵϳ 
     
Total comprehensive income for the 
year 

 - ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ 

     
Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners: 

    

     
Dividends provided for or paid ϯϬaͿ - (ϴϱ,ϮϭϮͿ (ϴϱ,ϮϭϮͿ 
     
Balance at ϯϬ June ϮϬϭϵ   ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ (ϭϬϬ,ϲϱϲͿ ϭ,ϱϮϮ,ϰϭϭ 
     
Balance at ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ  ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ (ϭϬϬ,ϲϱϲͿ ϭ,ϱϮϮ,ϰϭϭ 
     
Effect of AASB ϭϲ: Leases ϯdͿ - (ϭϭϰ,ϮϯϬͿ (ϭϭϰ,ϮϯϬͿ 
     
Total comprehensive income for the 
year 

 - ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ 

     
Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners: 

    

     
Dividends provided for or paid ϯϬaͿ - (ϳϲ,ϲϵϭͿ (ϳϲ,ϲϵϭͿ 
     
Balance at ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ  ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ (ϲϮ,ϯϰϲͿ ϭ,ϱϲϬ,ϳϮϭ 
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Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
Statement of Cash Flows 
fŽƌ ƚhe Ǉeaƌ eŶd ϯϬ JƵŶe ϮϬϮϬ 

  
Notes 

ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

 
Cash flows from operating activities 

   

Receipts from customers  ϯ,ϱϵϰ,ϱϴϲ ϯ,ϰϴϴ,ϱϴϱ 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (Ϯ,ϳϴϬ,ϲϱϱͿ (Ϯ,ϯϱϴ,ϮϮϯͿ 
Interest received  ϯϯϳ ϰϯϯ 
Interest paid  (ϳϲ,ϵϭϳͿ (ϴϭ,ϬϮϵͿ 
Lease payments (interest componentͿ ϭϭbͿ (ϯϮ,ϲϵϳͿ - 
Lease payments not included in the measurement of lease 
liabilities 

ϭϭdͿ (ϳϱ,ϵϳϯͿ - 

Income taxes paid  (ϯϳ,ϰϲϯͿ (ϵϵ,ϲϵϴͿ 

Net cash provided by operating activities Ϯϲ ϱϵϭ,Ϯϭϴ ϵϱϬ,Ϭϲϴ 
 
Cash flows from investing activities 

   

Payments for property, plant and equipment  (ϳϵϴ,ϳϵϯͿ (ϲϭϭ,ϮϲϮͿ 

Payments for intangible assets  (ϴϵ,ϵϯϬͿ (ϱϴ,ϬϮϬͿ 

Net cash used in investing activities  (ϴϴϴ,ϳϮϯͿ (ϲϲϵ,ϮϴϮͿ 
 
Cash flows from financing activities 

   

Proceeds from loans and borrowings  ϱϴϱ,ϬϬϬ - 

Repayment of loans and borrowings  (ϰϬϲ,ϱϵϬͿ (ϯϭ,ϵϱϵͿ 
Lease payments (principal componentͿ ϮϭaͿ (Ϯϲ,ϲϬϵͿ - 
Dividends paid ϯϬaͿ (ϳϲ,ϲϵϭͿ (ϴϱ,ϮϭϱͿ 

Net cash provided by/(used inͿ financing activities  ϳϱ,ϭϭϬ (ϭϭϳ,ϭϳϰͿ 
    
Net cash increase/(decreaseͿ in cash held  (ϮϮϮ,ϯϵϱͿ ϭϲϯ,ϲϭϮ 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 

  
ϯϳϯ,ϴϭϭ 

 
ϮϭϬ,ϭϵϵ 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year ϭϯaͿ ϭϱϭ,ϰϭϲ ϯϳϯ,ϴϭϭ 
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Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FŽƌ ƚhe Ǉeaƌ eŶd ϯϬ JƵŶe ϮϬϮϬ 
 
NŽƚe ϭ  ReƉŽƌƚiŶg EŶƚiƚǇ  
 
This is the financial report for Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited (the companyͿ. The company is 
a for profit entity limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The registered office and principal 
place of business is: 
 
 Registered Office   Principal Place of Business 
  
 ϭϭϰ Poinciana Avenue   ϭϭϰ Poinciana Avenue 
 Tewantin QLD ϰϱϲϱ   Tewantin QLD ϰϱϲϱ 
 
Further information on the nature of the operations and principal activity of the company is provided in the 
directorsΖ report. Information on the companyΖs related party relationships is provided in Note Ϯϵ. 
 
NŽƚe Ϯ BaƐiƐ Žf ƉƌeƉaƌaƚiŽŶ aŶd ƐƚaƚeŵeŶƚ Žf cŽŵƉliaŶce 
 
BaƐiƐ of ƉƌeƉaƌaƚion and Ɛƚaƚemenƚ of comƉliance 
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASBͿ 
and the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ.  The financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSͿ adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASBͿ. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and historical cost basis, except for certain properties, 
financial instruments, and equity financial assets that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end 
of each reporting period. 
 
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar, unless 
otherwise stated. 
 
These financial statements for the year ended ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ were authorised for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the directors on ϭϯ September ϮϬϮϬ. 
 
NŽƚe ϯ ChaŶgeƐ iŶ accŽƵŶƚiŶg ƉŽlicieƐ͕ ƐƚaŶdaƌdƐ͕ aŶd iŶƚeƌƉƌeƚaƚiŽŶƐ 
 
The company initially applied AASB ϭϲ Leases from ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. AASB Interpretation Ϯϯ Uncertainty over Income 
Tax Treatments is also effective from ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ but is not expected to have a material impact on the companyΖs 
financial statements. The companyΖs existing policy for uncertain income tax treatments is consistent with the 
requirements in Interpretation Ϯϯ. 
 
The company has implemented a new Accounting Standard which has come into effect and is included in the 
results. AASB ϭϲ: Leases (AASB ϭϲͿ has been applied retrospectively without restatement of comparatives by 
recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying AASB ϭϲ as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 
ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under 
AASB ϭϭϳ: Leases. 
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aͿ Definition of a lease 
Previously, the company determined at contract inception whether an arrangement was or contained a lease 
under Interpretation ϰ Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.  The company now assesses 
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease, as explained in Note ϰ.  
 
On transition to AASB ϭϲ, the company elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of 
which transactions are leases. The company applied AASB ϭϲ only to contracts that were previously identified as 
leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under AASB ϭϭϳ and Interpretation ϰ were not reassessed for 
whether there is a lease under AASBϭϲ. Therefore, the definition of a lease under AASB ϭϲ was applied only to 
contracts entered into or changed on or after ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. 
 

bͿ As a lessee 
As a lessee, the company leases assets including property and IT equipment. The company previously classified leases as operating, 
or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to 
the ownership of the underlying asset to the company. Under AASB ϭϲ, the company recognises right‐of‐use assets and lease 
liabilities for most of these leases (i.e. these leases are on balance sheetͿ. 
 
The company recognises lease and non‐lease components such as outgoings separately. 
 
LeaƐeƐ claƐƐified aƐ oƉeƌaƚing leaƐeƐ Ƶndeƌ AASB ϭϭϳ 
 
Previously, the company classified property, office equipment, and IT equipment leases as operating leases under AASB ϭϭϳ. On 
transition, for these leases, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at 
the companyΖs incremental borrowing rate as at ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. 
 
Right‐of‐use assets are measured at either: 

- their carrying amount as if AASB ϭϲ had been applied since the lease commencement date, discounted using the 
companyΖs incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application: the company applied this approach to its 
property lease; or 

- an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments; the company 
applied this approach to all other leases. 
 

The company has tested its right‐of‐use assets for impairment on the date of transition and has concluded that there is no 
indication that the right‐of‐use assets are impaired. 
 
The company has used a number of practical expedients when applying AASB ϭϲ to leases previously classified as operating leases 
under AASB ϭϭϳ. The practical expedients include that the company: 

- did not recognise right‐of‐use assets and liabilities for leases which the lease term ends within ϭϮ months of the date of 
initial application; 

- did not recognise right‐of‐use assets and liabilities for leases of low value assets (e.g. office equipment and IT 
equipmentͿ; 

- excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right‐of‐use asset at the date of initial application; and 
- used hindsight when determining the lease term on contracts that have options to extend or terminate. 

 
cͿ As a lessor 

The company leases out its investment property. The company has classified these leases as operating leases. The company is not 
required to make any adjustments on transition to AASB ϭϲ for leases in which it acts as a lessor. 
 

dͿ Impact on financial statements 
On transition to AASB ϭϲ, the company recognised additional right‐of‐use assets and additional lease liabilities, recognising the 
difference in retained earnings. The impact on transition is summarised below. 
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ImƉacƚ on eƋƵiƚǇ ƉƌeƐenƚed aƐ incƌeaƐe ;decƌeaƐeͿ 

Note ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Asset 
Right-of-use assets - land and buildings 

 
ϭϲbͿ 

 
ϰϳϱ,ϭϭϯ 

Deferred tax asset ϭϴbͿ ϰϯ,ϯϮϵ 
Liability   
Lease Liabilities ϮϭaͿ (ϲϯϮ,ϲϳϮͿ 
Equity   
Accumulated losses  (ϭϭϰ,ϮϯϬͿ 

 
When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the company discounted lease payments using 
its incremental borrowing rate at ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. The weighted average rate applied is ϱ.ϯϵй. 
 

LeaƐe liabiliƚieƐ ƌeconciliaƚion on ƚƌanƐiƚion  
Operating lease disclosure as at June ϮϬϭϵ ϰϭϳ,ϱϬϵ 

     Add: additional options now expected to be exercised ϲϮϮ,ϵϯϳ 

     Less: AASB ϭϭϳ lease commitments reconciliation (ϭϯϱ,ϴϬϰͿ 
     Less: present value discounting (Ϯϴϭ,ϳϯϱͿ 
     Less: other adjustments to present value on transition ϵ,ϳϲϱ 

Lease liability as at ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ ϲϯϮ,ϲϳϮ 
 
NŽƚe ϰ SƵŵŵaƌǇ Žf ƐigŶificaŶƚ accŽƵŶƚiŶg ƉŽlicieƐ 
 
The company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements, 
except if mentioned otherwise (see also Note ϯͿ. 
 

aͿ Revenue from contracts with customers 
The company has entered into a franchise agreement with Bendigo Bank. The company delivers banking and financial services of 
Bendigo Bank to its community. The franchise agreement provides for a share of interest, fee, and commission revenue earned by 
the company. Interest margin share is based on a funds transfer pricing methodology which recognises that income is derived 
from deposits held, and that loans granted incur a funding cost. Fees are based on the companyΖs current fee schedule and 
commissions are based on the agreements in place. All margin revenue is recorded as non‐interest income when the companyΖs 
right to receive the payment is established. 
 
The company acts as an agent under the franchise agreement and revenue arises from the rendering of services through its 
franchise agreement. 
 
Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, at the fair value of consideration specified in the franchise agreement. Under AASB 
ϭϱ. ReǀenƵe fƌom ConƚƌacƚƐ ǁiƚh CƵƐƚomeƌƐ  (AASB ϭϱͿ, revenue recognition for the companyΖs revenue stream is as 
follows: 

Revenue Stream Includes Performance Obligation Timing of recognition 
Franchise 
agreement profit 
share 

Margin, 
commission, and 
fee income 

When the company satisfies 
its obligations to arrange for 
the services to be provided 
to the customer by the 
supplier (Bendigo Bank as 
franchisorͿ. 

On completion of the 
provision of the relevant 
service. Revenue is accrued 
monthly and paid within ϭϬ 
business days after the end of 
each month. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GSTͿ. 
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ReǀenƵe calcƵlaƚion 
The franchise agreement provides that three forms of revenue may be earned by the company – margin, commission and fee 
income. Bendigo Bank decides the form of revenue the company earns on different types of products and services. 
 
The revenue earned by the company is dependent on the business that it generates. It may also be affected by other factors, such 
as economic and local conditions, for example, interest rates. 
 
Maƌgin 
Margin is arrived at through the following calculation: 

x Interest paid by customers on loans less interest paid to customers on deposits 
x plus, any deposit returns i.e. interest return applied by Bendigo Bank for a deposit, 
x minƵƐ any costs of funds i.e. interest applied by to fund a loan. 

 
The company is entitled to a share of the margin earned by Bendigo Bank. If this reflects a loss, the company incurs a share of that 
loss. 
 
CommiƐƐion 
Commission revenue is in the form of commission generated for products and services sold. This commission is recognised at a 
point in time which reflects when the company has fulfilled its performance obligation. 
 
The company receives trailing commission for products and services sold. Ongoing trailing commission payments are recognised 
on receipt as there is insufficient detail readily available to estimate the most likely amount of income without a high probability of 
significant reversal in a subsequent reporting period. The receipt of ongoing trailing commission income is outside the control of 
the company and is a significant judgement area. 
 
Fee Income 
Fee income is a share of what is commonly referred to as Ζbank fees and chargesΖ charged to customers by Bendigo Bank Group 
entities including fees for loan applications and account transactions. 
 
Coƌe banking ƉƌodƵcƚƐ 
Bendigo Bank has identified some products and services as Ζcore banking productsΖ. It may change the products and services which 
are identified as core banking products by giving the company at least ϯϬ days’ notice. Core banking products currently include 
Bendigo Bank branded home loans, term deposits and at call deposits. 
 
AbiliƚǇ ƚo change financial ƌeƚƵƌn 
Under the franchise agreement, Bendigo Bank may change the form and amount of financial return that the company receives. 
The reasons it may make a change include changes in industry or economic conditions or changes in the way Bendigo Bank earns 
revenue. 
 
The change may be to the method of calculation of margin, the amount of margin, commission and fee income or a change of a 
margin to a commission or vice versa. This may affect the amount of revenue the company receives on a particular product or 
service. The effect of the change on the revenue earned by the company is entirely dependent on the change. 
 
Bendigo Bank must not reduce the margin and commission the company receives on core banking products and services to less 
than ϱϬй (on an aggregate basisͿ of Bendigo Bank’s margin at that time. For other products and services, there is no restriction on 
the change Bendigo Bank may make. 
 

bͿ Other revenue 
The companyΖs activities include the generation of income from sources other than the core products under the franchise 
agreement. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and can 
be reliably measured. 

 



Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
 

Ϯϲ  

Revenue Stream Revenue recognition policy 
Rental income Rental income from investment properties, including property owned and 

right-of-use assets leased, is accounted for on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. If not received at balance date, revenue is reflected on the 
balance sheet as a receivable and carried at its recoverable amount. 

Discretionary financial 
contributions (also ΗMarket 
Development FundΗ or ΗMDFΗ 
incomeͿ 

MDF income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is 
established. MDF income is discretionary and provided and receivable at 
month-end and paid within ϭϰ days after month-end. 

Cash flow boost Cash flow boost income is recognised when the right to the payment is 
established (e.g. monthly or quarterly in the activity statementͿ. 

Other income All other revenues that did not contain contracts with customers are 
recognised as goods and services are provided. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GSTͿ. 
 
DiƐcƌeƚionaƌǇ financial conƚƌibƵƚionƐ 
In addition to margin, commission and fee income, and separate from the franchise agreement, Bendigo Bank has also made MDF 
payments to the company. 
 
The amount has been based on the volume of business attributed to a branch. The purpose of the discretionary payments is to 
assist with local market development activities, including community sponsorships and grants. It is for the board to decide how to 
use the MDF. 
 
The payments from Bendigo Bank are discretionary and may change the amount or stop making them at any time. The company 
retains control over the funds, the funds are not refundable to Bendigo Bank. 
 
CaƐh floǁ booƐƚ 
During the financial year, in response to the COVID‐ϭϵ outbreak, Boosting Cash Flow For Employers (Corona virus economic 
response packageͿ Act ϮϬϮͿ CFB AcƚͿ was enacted. The purpose was to provide temporary cash  flow to small and 
medium businesses that employ staff and have been affected by the economic downturn associated with COVID‐
ϭϵ. 
 
The amounts received or receivable is in relation to amounts withheld as withholding tax reported in the activity statement. This 
essentially subsidises the companyΖs obligation to remit withholding tax to the Australian Taxation Office. For reporting purposes, 
the amounts subsidised are recognised as revenue. 
 
The amounts are not assessable for tax purposes and there is no obligation to repay the amounts when the cash flow of the 
company improves. 
 

cͿ Economic dependency – Bendigo Bank 
The company has entered into a franchise agreement with Bendigo Bank that governs the management of the Community 
Bank. 
 
The company is economically dependent on the ongoing receipt of income under the franchise agreement with Bendigo Bank. The 
directors have no reason to believe a new franchise arrangement under mutually acceptable terms will not be forthcoming 
following expiry. 
 
The company operates as a franchise of Bendigo Bank, using the name “Bendigo Bank” and the logo and system of operations of 
Bendigo Bank. The company manages the Community Bank on behalf of Bendigo Bank, however all transactions with customers 
conducted through the Community Bank are effectively conducted between the customers and Bendigo Bank. 
All deposits are made with Bendigo Bank, and all personal and investment products are products of Bendigo Bank, with the 
company facilitating the provision of those products. All loans, leases or hire purchase transactions, issues of new credit or debit 
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cards, temporary or bridging finance and any other transaction that involves creating a new debt, or increasing or changing the 
terms of an existing debt owed to Bendigo Bank, must be approved by Bendigo Bank. All credit transactions are made with 
Bendigo Bank, and all credit products are products of Bendigo Bank. 
 
The company promotes and sells the products and services, but is not a party to the transaction. 
 
The credit risk (i.e. the risk that a customer will not make repaymentsͿ is for the relevant Bendigo Bank entity to bear as long as 
the company has complied with the appropriate procedures and relevant obligations and has not exercised a discretion in 
granting or extending credit. 
 
Bendigo Bank provides significant assistance in establishing and maintaining the Community Bank franchise operations. It also 
continues to provide ongoing management and operational support and other assistance and guidance in relation to all aspects of 
the franchise operation, including advice and assistance in relation to: 

x the design, layout and fit out of the Community Bank premises 
x training for the branch manager and other employees in banking, management systems and interface protocol 
x methods and procedures for the sale of products and provision of services 
x security and cash logistic controls 
x calculation of company revenue and payment of many operating and administrative expenses 
x the formulation and implementation of advertising and promotional programs 
x sales techniques and proper customer relations. 

 
dͿ Employee benefits 

 
ShoƌƚͲƚeƌm emƉloǇee benefiƚƐ 
Short‐term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for salary and wages 
(including non‐monetary benefitsͿ, annual leave, and sick leave which are expected to be wholly settled within ϭϮ months of the 
reporting date. They are measured at amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled, plus related on‐costs. Expenses 
for non‐accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable. 
 
An annual leave liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be reliably estimated. 
 
SƵƉeƌannƵaƚion conƚƌibƵƚion ƉlanƐ 
The company contributes to a superannuation contribution plan. Obligations for superannuation contributions to contribution 
plans are expensed as the related service is provided. 
 
Contributions to a superannuation contribution plan are expected to be settled wholly before ϭϮ months after the end of the 
financial year in which the employees render the related service. 
 
Oƚheƌ longͲƚeƌm emƉloǇee benefiƚƐ 
The companyΖs net obligation in respect of long‐term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have 
earned in return for their service in the current and prior reporting periods. 
 
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels plus 
related on‐costs, experience of employee departures, and years of service achieved. Expected future payments are discounted 
using market yields at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimate future cash outflows. 
 
Remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

eͿ Taxes 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. 
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The company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax treatments, do not meet 
the definition of income taxes, and therefore recognises them under AASB ϭϯϳ PƌoǀiƐionƐ  ͕Conƚingenƚ LiabiliƚieƐ and Conƚingenƚ AƐƐeƚƐ  ͘
 
CƵƌƌenƚ Income Taǆ 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. It is 
calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
 
Defeƌƌed ƚaǆ 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carried‐forward tax losses, and unused tax credits to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
 
Deferred tax is measured at the rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax and when the balances 
relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the entity intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
 
GoodƐ and SeƌǀiceƐ Taǆ 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except: 

- when the amount of GST incurred on a sale or purchase of assets or services is not payable to or recoverable from the 
taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part 
of the revenue or expense item. 

- when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 
-  

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position. Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or 
payable to, the taxation authority. 
 
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as part of 
operating cash flows. 
 

fͿ Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purposes of the statement of financial position and statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise: cash on 
hand, deposits held with banks, and short‐term, highly liquid investments (mainly money market fundsͿ that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value 
 

gͿ Property, plant, and equipment 
 
Recogniƚion and meaƐƵƌemenƚ 
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or fair value as applicable, which includes capitalised borrowings 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. 
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SƵbƐeƋƵenƚ eǆƉendiƚƵƌe 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will 
flow to the company. 
 
DeƉƌeciaƚion 
Depreciation is calculated to write‐off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values using 
straight‐line or diminishing value method over their estimated useful lives, and is recognised in profit or loss. Land is not 
depreciated. 
 
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as 
follows: 
 

Asset class Method Useful life 
Building Straight-line ϰϬ years 
Leasehold 
improvements 

Straight-line and diminishing 
value 

ϱ to ϰϬ years 

Plant and equipment Straight-line and diminishing 
value 

Ϯ to ϰϬ years 

Motor vehicles Diminishing value ϱ to ϲ years 
 
Depreciation methods, useful life, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 
 

hͿ Intangible assets 
Intangible assets of the company include the franchise fees paid to Bendigo Bank conveying the right to operate the Community 
Bank franchise. 
 
Recogniƚion and meaƐƵƌemenƚ 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed 
as either finite or indefinite. 
 
SƵbƐeƋƵenƚ eǆƉendiƚƵƌe 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which 
it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 
 
AmoƌƚiƐaƚion 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful life and assessed for impairment whenever impairment indicators 
are present. Intangible assets assessed as having indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at each reporting period and 
whenever impairment indicators are present. The indefinite useful life is also reassessed annually. 
 
The estimated useful life and amortisation method for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 
 

Asset class Method Useful life 
Franchise fee Straight-line Over the franchise term (ϱ yearsͿ 

 
Amortisation methods, useful life, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 
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iͿ Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 
of another entity. The companyΖs financial instruments include trade debtors and creditors, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, 
and leases. 
 
Sub-note iͿ and jͿ refer to the following acronyms: 
 
Acronym Meaning 
FVTPL  Fair value through profit or loss 
FVTOCI  Fair value through other comprehensive income 
SPPI  Solely payments of principal and interest 
ECL  Expected credit loss 
CGU  Cash‐generating unit 
 
Recogniƚion and iniƚial meaƐƵƌemenƚ 
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing componentͿ or financial liability is initially measured 
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue. A trade 
receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price. 
 
ClaƐƐificaƚion and ƐƵbƐeƋƵenƚ meaƐƵƌemenƚ 
 
Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVTOCI ‐ debt investment; FVTOCI ‐ equity 
investment; or FVTPL. 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the company changes its business model for 
managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period 
following the change in the business model. 
 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL: 

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial 
recognition, the company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 
amortised cost or FVTOCI as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise 
arise. 
 
Financial assets - business model assessment 
The company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level 
because this best reflects the way the business is managed. 
 

Financial assets at amortisation These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by 
impairment losses. Interest income and impairment are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit 
or loss. 
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Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
Borrowings and other financial liabilities (including trade payablesͿ are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A 
financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held‐for‐trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including interest expense, are 
recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Deƌecogniƚion 
 
Financial Assets 
The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
Where the company enters into transactions where it transfers assets recognised in the statement of financial position, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred asset, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 
 
Financial liabilities 
The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire. The company 
also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially 
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. 
 
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid 
(including any non‐cash assets transferred or liabilities assumedͿ is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and 
only when, the company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net 
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 

jͿ Impairment 
NonͲdeƌiǀaƚiǀe financial aƐƐeƚƐ 
The company recognises a loss allowance for ECL on its trade receivables. 
 
ECLΖs are the probability‐weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a financial instrument. A credit loss is the 
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash flows expected to be received. 
 
In measuring the ECL, a provision matrix for trade receivables is used, taking into consideration various data to get to an ECL, (ie 
diversity of its customer base, appropriate groupings of its historical loss experience etc.Ϳ. 
 
Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements 
At each reporting date, the entity recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain or loss in the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 
The companyΖs trade receivables are limited to the monthly profit share distribution from Bendigo Bank, which is received ϭϰ days 
post month end. Due to the reliance on Bendigo Bank the company has reviewed credit ratings provided by Standard Θ Poors, 
MoodyΖs and Fitch Ratings to determine the level of credit exposure to the company. The company also performed a historical 
assessment of receivables from Bendigo Bank and found no instances of default. As a result no impairment loss allowance has 
been made in relation to trade receivables as at ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ. 
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NonͲfinancial aƐƐeƚƐ 
At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its non‐financial assets (other than investment property, 
contracts assets, and deferred tax assetsͿ to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the assetΖs recoverable amount is estimated. 
 
The company has assessed for impairment indicators and noted no material impacts on the carrying amount of non‐financial 
assets. 
 

kͿ Issued capital 
OƌdinaƌǇ ƐhaƌeƐ 
Ordinary shares are recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the company. Any transaction costs arising on 
the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the share proceeds received. 
 

lͿ Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the economic entity has a legal, equitable or constructive obligation to make a future sacrifice of 
economic benefits to other entities as a result of past transactions or other past events, it is probable that a future sacrifice of 
economic benefits will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre‐tax rate that reflects current market assessment 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost. 
The estimated provisions for the current and comparative periods are to restore the premises under a Ζmake‐goodΖ 
clause. 
 
The company is required to restore the leased premises to its/their original condition before the end of the lease term. A 
provision has been recognised for the present value of the estimated expenditure required to remove any leasehold 
improvements, ATM installed at the branch, and incidental damage caused from the removal of assets. 
 

mͿ Leases 
The company has applied AASB ϭϲ using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not 
been restated and continues to be reported under AASB ϭϭϳ and Interpretation ϰ. The details of accounting policies under AASB 
ϭϭϳ and Interpretation ϰ are disclosed separately. 
 
PolicǇ aƉƉlicable fƌom ϭ JƵlǇ ϮϬϭϵ 
At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To 
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company uses the definition of a lease in 
AASB ϭϲ. 
 
This policy is applied to contracts entered, on or after ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ. 
 
As a lessee 
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the company allocates the consideration in 
the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand‐alone prices. The company recognises lease and non‐lease 
components such as outgoings separately. 
 
The company recognises a right‐of‐use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right‐of‐use asset is 
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 
 
The right‐of‐use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight‐line method from the commencement date to the end of the 
lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the company by the end of the lease term or the costs 
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of the right‐of‐use asset reflects that the company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right‐of‐use asset will be 
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and 
equipment. In addition, the right‐of‐use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. 
 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the companyΖs incremental 
borrowing rate. 
 
The company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from funding sources and where necessary 
makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of asset leased. 
 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

- fixed payments, including in‐substance fixed payments; 
- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 

commencement date; 
- amounts expected to be payable under a residual guarantee; and 
- the exercise price under a purchase option the company is reasonable certain to exercise, lease payments in an option 

renewal period if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the group is reasonably certain not to terminate early. 

 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in 
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the companyΖs estimate of the amount 
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in‐substance fixed lease payment. 
 
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right‐of‐use 
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right‐of‐use asset has been reduced to zero. 
 
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The company has elected not to recognise right‐of‐use assets and lease liabilities for leases of short‐term leases and low‐value 
assets, including IT equipment. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a 
straight‐line basis over the lease term. 
 
A short-term lease is lease that, at commencement date, has a lease term of ϭϮ months or less. 
 
As a lessor 
At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the company allocates the consideration in the 
contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand‐alone prices. 
 
When the company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance or operating lease. 
To classify each lease, the company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an 
operating lease. As part of this assessment, the company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major 
part of the economic life of the asset. 
 
When the company is an intermediate lessor in an arrangement of significant value, it accounts for its interest in the head lease 
and the sub‐lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub‐lease with reference to the right‐of‐use asset arising from 
the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short‐term lease to which the company applies the 
exemption described above, then it classifies the sub‐lease as an operating lease. 
If an arrangement contains lease and non‐lease components, then the company applies AASB ϭϲ to allocate the consideration in 
the contract. 
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The company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in AASB ϵ to the net investment in the lease (see Note 
ϰ(IͿͿ. The company further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment 
in the lease. 
 
The company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight‐line basis over the lease term as 
part of Ζother revenueΖ. 
 
Generally, the accounting policies applicable to the company as a lessor in the comparative period were not different from AASB 
ϭϲ except for the classification of the sub‐lease entered into during the current reporting period that resulted in a finance lease 
classification. 
 
PolicǇ aƉƉlicable befoƌe ϭ JƵlǇ ϭϵ 
For contracts entered into before ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ, the company determined whether the arrangement was or contained a lease 
based on the assessment of whether: 

- fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 
- the arrangement had conveyed the right to use an asset. An arrangement conveyed the right to use the asset if one of 

the following was met: 
o the purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an 

insignificant amount of the output; 
o the purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or controlling more 

than an insignificant amount of the output; or 
o facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an insignificant 

amount of the output, and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to the current 
market price per unit of output. 

 
As a lessee 
In the comparative period, as a lessee the company classified leases that transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of 
their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments over the 
lease term that the lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets were 
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. 
 
Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the companyΖs statement 
of financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognised in profit or loss on a straight‐line basis over the term 
of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the 
lease. 
 
As a lessor 
When the company acted as a lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease was a finance or operating lease. 
To classify each lease, the company made an overall assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this was the case then the lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was 
an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the company considered certain indicators such as whether the lease was for the 
major part of the economic life of the asset. 
 

nͿ Standards issued but not yet effective 
A number of new standards are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after ϭ January ϮϬϭϵ, however the changes are 
not expected to have a significant impact on the companyΖs financial statements. 
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NŽƚe ϱ  SigŶificaŶƚ accŽƵŶƚiŶg jƵdgeŵeŶƚƐ͕ eƐƚiŵaƚeƐ͕ aŶd aƐƐƵŵƉƚiŽŶƐ 
 
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application of the 
companyΖs accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 
 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively. 
 

aͿ Judgements 
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 
 

Note 
 
Note ϴ - revenue recognition 
Note Ϯϭ - leases: 

Judgement 
 
whether revenue is recognised over time or at a point in time; 

aͿ control aͿ whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception by assessing 
whether the company has the right to direct the use of the 
identified asset and obtain substantially all the economic benefits 
from the use of that asset; 

bͿ lease term bͿ whether the company is reasonably certain to exercise extension 
options, termination periods, and purchase options;  

cͿ discount rates cͿ judgement is required to determine the discount rate, where the 
discount rate is the companyΖs incremental borrowing rate if the 
rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. The 
incremental borrowing rate is determined with reference to 
factors specific to the company and underlying asset including: 
 - the amount; 
 - the lease term; 
 - economic environment; and 
 - other relevant factors. 

 
bͿ Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ that have a significant risk of resulting 
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year is included in the 
following notes: 
 

Notes Judgement 
Note ϴ - revenue recognition Estimate of expected returns; 
Note ϭϴ - recognition of deferred tax assets availability of future taxable profit against which deductible 

temporary differences and carried-forward tax losses can be 
utilised; 

Note ϭϱ - estimation of useful lives of assets key assumptions on historical experience and the condition of 
the asset; 

Note Ϯϯ - long service leave provision key assumptions on attrition rate and pay increases though 
promotion and inflation; 

Note ϮϮ - make-good provision key assumptions on future cost estimates in restoring the 
leased premises in accordance with the lease agreement; 
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NŽƚe ϲ FiŶaŶcial RiƐk ŵaŶageŵeŶƚ 
 
The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 
- credit risk 
- liquidity risk; and 
- market risk (including currency, price, cash flow and fair value interest rateͿ. 
  
The companyΖs overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the company. The company does not use 
derivative instruments. 
 
Risk management is carried out directly by the board of directors. 
 

aͿ Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the companyΖs receivables from customers. 
 
The company has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that customers have 
an appropriate credit history. The companyΖs franchise agreement limits the companyΖs credit exposure to one 
financial institution, being Bendigo Bank. 
 

bͿ Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The companyΖs approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the companyΖs reputation. 
 
The company believes that its sound relationship with Bendigo Bank mitigates this risk significantly. 
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and 
include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. 
 
ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ 
 
         Contractual cash flows 

Non-derivative 
financial liability 

Carrying amount Total Not later than 
ϭϮ months 

Between ϭϮ 
months and five 
years 

Greater than 
five years 

Bank loans ϭ,ϲϵϲ,ϵϱϴ ϭ,ϲϵϲ,ϵϱϴ ϮϮϰ,ϵϭϳ ϳϯϲ,ϬϮϭ ϳϯϲ,ϬϮϭ 
Lease liabilities ϲϭϵ,ϳϴϳ ϴϯϵ,ϰϱϮ ϱϵ,ϱϰϯ Ϯϰϲ,ϳϬϵ ϱϯϯ,ϮϬϬ 
Trade payables ϭϭ,ϱϵϳ ϭϭ,ϱϵϳ ϭϭ,ϱϵϳ - - 
 Ϯ,Ϯϯϴ,ϯϰϮ Ϯ,ϱϰϴ,ϬϬϳ Ϯϵϲ,Ϭϱϳ ϵϴϮ,ϳϯϬ ϭ,Ϯϲϵ,Ϯϭϭ 

 
 
ϯϬ June ϮϬϭϵ 
         Contractual cash flows 

Non-derivative 
financial liability 

Carrying amount Total Not later than 
ϭϮ months 

Between ϭϮ 
months and five 
years 

Greater than 
five years 

Bank loans ϭ,ϱϭϴ,ϱϰϵ ϭ,ϱϭϴ,ϱϰϵ ϰϱ,ϰϲϬ ϳϯϲ,ϱϰϱ ϳϯϲ,ϱϰϱ 
Trade payables ϭϳ,ϴϵϴ ϭϳ,ϴϵϴ ϭϳ,ϴϵϴ - - 
 ϭ,ϱϯϲ,ϰϰϳ ϭ,ϱϯϲ,ϰϰϳ ϲϯ,ϯϱϴ ϳϯϲ,ϱϰϱ ϳϯϲ,ϱϰϱ 
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aͿ Market risk 
Maƌkeƚ ƌiƐk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices ‐ e.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and equity prices ‐ will affect the 
companyΖs income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and 
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 
 
The company has no exposure to any transactions denominated in a currency other than Australian dollars. 
 
Pƌice ƌiƐk 
The company is not exposed to equity securities price risk as it does not hold investments for sale or at fair value. The company is 
not exposed to commodity price risk. 
 
CaƐh floǁ and faiƌ ǀalƵe inƚeƌeƐƚ ƌaƚe ƌiƐk 
Interest‐bearing assets are held with Bendigo Bank and subject to movements in market interest. Interest‐rate risk could also arise 
from long‐term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the company to cash flow interest‐rate risk. The company 
believes that its sound relationship with Bendigo Bank mitigates this risk significantly. 
 
The company held cash and cash equivalents of Ψϭϱϭ,ϰϭϲ at ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ (ϮϬϭϵ: Ψϯϳϯ,ϴϭϭͿ. The cash and cash equivalents are 
held with BEN, which are rated BBB on Standard Θ PoorΖs credit ratings. 
 
NŽƚe ϳ CaƉiƚal MaŶageŵeŶƚ 
 
The boardΖs policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to sustain future development of the company. The board of directors 
monitor the return on capital and the level of distributions to shareholders. Capital is represented by total equity as recorded in 
the statement of financial position. 
 
In accordance with the franchise agreement, in any ϭϮ month period the funds distributed to shareholders shall not exceed the 
distribution limit. 
 
The distribution limit is the greater of: 

aͿ ϮϬй of the profit or funds of the company otherwise available for distribution to shareholders in that ϭϮ month period; 
and 

bͿ subject to the availability of distributable profits, the relevant rate of return multiplied by the average level of share 
capital of the company over that ϭϮ month period where the relevant rate of return is equal to the weighted average 
interest rate on ϵϬ day bank bills over that ϭϮ month period plus ϱй. 
 

The board is managing the growth of the business in line with this requirement. There are no other externally imposed capital 
requirements, although the nature of the company is such that amounts will be paid in the form of charitable donations and 
sponsorship. Charitable donations and sponsorship paid for the year ended ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ can be seen in the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive Income. 
 
There were no changes in the companyΖs approach to capital management during the year. 
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NŽƚe ϴ  ReǀeŶƵe fƌŽŵ cŽŶƚƌacƚƐ ǁiƚh cƵƐƚŽŵeƌƐ 
 
The company generates revenue primarily from facilitating community banking services under a franchise agreement with 
Bendigo Bank. The company is entitled to a share of the margin earned by Bendigo Bank. 
 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
 

ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Revenue:   
- Revenue from contracts with customers ϯ,ϭϯϮ,ϬϬϴ ϯ,ϬϲϮ,ϲϬϳ 
 ϯ,ϭϯϮ,ϬϬϴ ϯ,ϬϲϮ,ϲϬϳ 
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers   
At a point in time:   
- Margin income Ϯ,ϲϱϵ,Ϭϭϯ Ϯ,ϲϬϬ,ϵϲϴ 
- Fee income Ϯϯϴ,ϲϬϭ Ϯϯϭ,ϳϰϬ 
- Commission income Ϯϯϰ,ϯϵϰ ϮϮϵ,ϴϵϵ 
 ϯ,ϭϯϮ,ϬϬϴ ϯ,ϬϲϮ,ϲϬϳ 

There was no revenue from contracts with customers recognised over time during the financial year. 
 
NŽƚe ϵ Oƚheƌ ƌeǀeŶƵe 
 
The company generates other sources of revenue from rental income from owned investment properties, cash flow boost from 
the Australian Government and discretionary contributions received from the franchisor. 
 

Other revenue ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Revenue:   

‐ Rental income ϰϲ,ϰϮϭ ϰϲ,ϵϳϭ 

‐ Market development fund income ϵϳ,ϱϬϬ ϭϬϭ,ϲϲϳ 
‐ Cash flow boost ϯϬ,ϴϴϴ ‐ 
‐ Other income Ϯ,Ϯϯϯ ϭϰ,ϴϵϬ 

 ϭϳϳ,ϬϰϮ ϭϲϯ,ϱϮϴ 
 
NŽƚe ϭϬ FiŶaŶce IŶcŽŵe 
 
The company holds financial instruments measured at amortised cost. Interest income is recognised at the effective interest 
rate. 
 
Term deposits which can be readily converted to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change may 
qualify as a cash equivalent. 
 

Finance income ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
 Ψ Ψ 
At amortised cost ϯϯϳ ϰϯϯ 
Term deposits ϯϯϳ ϰϯϯ 
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NŽƚe ϭϭ EǆƉeŶƐeƐ 
 

aͿ Depreciation and amortisation expense 
 
 

DeƉƌeciaƚion of non‐cƵƌƌenƚ aƐƐeƚƐ͗ ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
 Ψ Ψ 
- Buildings ϰϯ,ϭϴϭ Ϯϯ,ϰϯϲ 
- Leasehold improvements ϭϵ,ϴϳϵ ϴ,ϵϮϰ 
- Plant and equipment ϲϮ,ϰϬϵ Ϯϭ,ϯϮϰ 
- Motor vehicles ϭ,ϳϮϴ Ϯ,ϭϮϲ 
 ϭϮϳ,ϭϵϳ ϱϱ,ϴϭϬ 
DeƉƌeciaƚion of ƌighƚͲofͲƵƐe aƐƐeƚƐ 
 
- Leased land and buildings 

 
 

ϯϱ,ϭϴϯ 

 
 

- 
 ϯϱ,ϭϴϯ - 
AmoƌƚiƐaƚion of inƚangible aƐƐeƚƐ͗ 
 
- Franchise fee 

 
 

ϱϵ,ϲϵϰ 

 
 

ϱϲ,ϱϱϬ 
 ϱϵ,ϲϵϰ ϱϲ,ϱϱϬ 
   
Total depreciation and amortisation expense ϮϮϮ,Ϭϳϰ ϭϭϮ,ϯϲϬ 

 
The non‐current tangible and intangible assets listed above are depreciated and amortised in accordance with the companyΖs 
accounting policy (see Note ϰg and ϰhͿ. 
 

bͿ Finance costs 
 

Finance coƐƚƐ͗ Note ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
  Ψ Ψ 
- Bank loan interest paid or accrued  ϳϲ,ϵϭϳ ϴϭ,Ϭϭϴ 
- Lease interest expense ϮϭaͿ ϯϮ,ϲϵϳ - 
- Unwinding of make-good provision  ϵϰ - 
- Other  - ϭϭ 
  ϭϬϵ,ϳϬϴ ϴϭ,ϬϮϵ 

 
Finance costs are recognised as expenses when incurred using the effective interest rate. 
 

cͿ Employee benefit expenses 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
 Ψ Ψ 
Wages and salaries ϭ,ϰϴϲ,ϵϬϭ ϭ,ϰϭϰ,ϰϭϮ 
Contributions to superannuation contribution plans ϭϯϲ,ϭϭϲ ϭϮϵ,ϵϳϮ 
Expenses related to long service leave (ϴϰϵͿ ‐ 
Other expenses ϭϱϲ,ϲϬϭ ϭϳϮ,ϴϮϯ 

 ϭ,ϳϳϴ,ϳϲϵ ϭ,ϳϭϳ,ϮϬϳ 
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dͿ Recognition exemption 
The company has elected to exempt leases from recognition where the underlying asset is assessed as low‐value or the lease term 
is ϭϮ months or less. 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Expenses relating to low‐value leases ϳϱ,ϵϳϯ ‐ 

 ϳϱ,ϵϳϯ ‐ 
 
Expenses relating to leases exempt from recognition are included in systems costs and general administration expenses. 
 
The company pays for the right to use information technology equipment and indoor plants. The underlying assets have been 
assessed as low value and exempted from recognition. 
 

eͿ Other expenses 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

‐ Sale of property, plant and equipment ϭϰ,ϵϭϰ Ϯϲ,ϲϮϮ 

 
 
NŽƚe ϭϮ IŶcŽŵe ƚaǆ eǆƉeŶƐe 
 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Attributable current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity as appropriate. 
 

aͿ Amounts recognised in profit or loss 
 

CƵƌƌenƚ ƚaǆ eǆƉenƐe ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ Ψ 

- Current tax ϲϰ,ϱϲϵ ϱϯ,ϳϭϬ 
- Movement in deferred tax (ϭϱ,ϲϳϳͿ ϯϯ,ϭϳϮ 
- Adjustment to deferred tax on AASB ϭϲ retrospective application ϰϯ,ϯϮϵ - 
- Reduction in company tax rate ϲϯϰ - 
- Changes in estimates related to prior years ϭϭϬ ϳϵϭ 

 ϵϮ,ϵϲϱ ϴϳ,ϲϳϯ 
 
Progressive changes to the company tax rate have been enacted. Consequently, as of ϭ July ϮϬϮϬ, the company tax rate will be 
reduced from Ϯϳ.ϱй to Ϯϲй. This change resulted in a loss of Ψϲϯϰ related to the remeasurement of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities of the company. 
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bͿ Pƌima facie income tax reconciliation 
 ϮϬϮϬ 

Ψ 
ϮϬϭϵ 

Ψ 
Operating profit before taxation ϯϮϮ,ϭϵϲ ϮϵϮ,ϰϵϵ 

Prima facie tax on profit from ordinary activities at Ϯϳ.ϱй (ϮϬϭϵ: Ϯϳ.ϱйͿ ϴϴ,ϲϬϰ ϴϬ,ϰϯϳ 

Tax effect of:   

‐ Non‐deductible expenses ϭϮ,ϭϬϵ ϲ,ϰϰϱ 

‐ Non‐assessable income (ϴ,ϰϵϰͿ ‐ 
‐ Temporary differences (Ϯϳ,ϲϱϬͿ ‐ 
‐ Movement in deferred tax (ϭϱ,ϲϳϳͿ ‐ 
‐ Leases initial recognition ϰϯ,ϯϮϵ ‐ 
‐ Reduction in company tax rate ϲϯϰ ‐ 
‐ Under/(overͿ provision of income tax in the prior year ϭϭϬ ϳϵϭ 

 ϵϮ,ϵϲϱ ϴϳ,ϲϳϯ 
 
 
NŽƚe ϭϯ       CaƐh aŶd caƐh eƋƵiǀaleŶƚƐ 
 

aͿ Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in banks. Term deposits which can be readily converted to a known amount 
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change may qualify as a cash equivalent. 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

‐ Cash at bank and on hand ϭϯϲ,ϴϰϱ ϯϱϵ,ϱϮϰ 
‐ Term deposits ϭϰ,ϱϳϭ ϭϰ,Ϯϴϳ 

  ϭϱϭ,ϰϭϲ ϯϳϯ,ϴϭϭ 
 
NŽƚe ϭϰ  Tƌade aŶd Žƚheƌ ƌeceiǀableƐ 
  

 ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

- Trade receivables ϵϲ,ϮϮϵ ϰϴ,ϳϴϵ 
- Prepayments ϭϯ,ϯϰϮ ϭϰ,ϰϳϭ 

- Other receivables and accruals Ϯ,ϱϬϬ ϭϮ,ϰϬϬ 

  ϭϭϮ,Ϭϳϭ ϳϱ,ϲϲϬ 
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NŽƚe ϭϱ PƌŽƉeƌƚǇ͕ ƉlaŶƚ aŶd eƋƵiƉŵeŶƚ 
 

aͿ Carrying amounts ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Land   

At cost ϲϰϱ,ϬϬϬ ϲϰϱ,ϬϬϬ 
BƵildingƐ   

At cost ϭ,ϳϮϳ,ϭϳϳ ϭ,ϳϮϳ,ϭϳϳ 
Less: accumulated depreciation (ϭϰϮ,ϲϲϳͿ (ϵϵ,ϰϴϲͿ 

 ϭ,ϱϴϰ,ϱϭϬ ϭ,ϲϮϳ,ϲϵϭ 
LeaƐehold imƉƌoǀemenƚƐ   

At cost ϲϵϱ,ϰϳϲ ϱϳϱ,ϯϲϳ 
Less: accumulated depreciation (ϰϯ,ϳϱϰͿ (Ϯϯ,ϴϳϱͿ 

 ϲϱϭ,ϳϮϮ ϱϱϭ,ϰϵϮ 
Planƚ and eƋƵiƉmenƚ   

At cost ϳϵϳ,Ϯϳϵ ϴϭϮ,ϵϯϰ 
Less: accumulated depreciation (ϰϯϳ,ϲϲϮͿ (ϰϱϭ,ϮϮϰͿ 

 ϯϱϵ,ϲϭϳ ϯϲϭ,ϳϭϬ 
Moƚoƌ ǀehicleƐ   

At cost ‐ ϰϱ,ϲϵϮ 
Less: accumulated depreciation ‐ (ϯϲ,ϰϳϳͿ 

 ‐ ϵ,Ϯϭϱ 
   
 
Total written down amount 

ϯ,ϮϰϬ,ϴϰϵ ϯ,ϭϵϱ,ϭϬϴ 

 
The directors do not believe the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the above assets. The directors therefore 
believe the carrying amount is not impaired. 
 

Reconciliation of carrying amounts ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Land   

Carrying amount at beginning ϲϰϱ,ϬϬϬ ϲϰϱ,ϬϬϬ 

Carrying amount at end ϲϰϱ,ϬϬϬ ϲϰϱ,ϬϬϬ 
BƵildingƐ   

Carrying amount at beginning ϭ,ϲϮϳ,ϲϵϭ ϭ,ϲϱϭ,ϭϮϳ 
Depreciation (ϰϯ,ϭϴϭͿ (Ϯϯ,ϰϯϲͿ 

Carrying amount at end ϭ,ϱϴϰ,ϱϭϬ ϭ,ϲϮϳ,ϲϵϭ 



Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
 

ϰϯ  

 
bͿ Reconciliation of carrying amounts ;conƚinƵedͿ ϮϬϮϬ 

Ψ 
ϮϬϭϵ 

Ψ 
LeaƐehold imƉƌoǀemenƚƐ   

Carrying amount at beginning ϱϱϭ,ϰϵϮ ϴϮ,ϵϱϬ 
Additions ϭϮϬ,ϭϬϵ ϰϳϳ,ϰϲϲ 
Depreciation (ϭϵ,ϴϳϵͿ (ϴ,ϵϮϰͿ 

Carrying amount at end ϲϱϭ,ϳϮϮ ϱϱϭ,ϰϵϮ 
Planƚ and eƋƵiƉmenƚ   

Carrying amount at beginning ϯϲϭ,ϳϭϬ Ϯϳϱ,ϴϲϬ 
Additions ϳϱ,ϮϯϬ ϭϯϯ,ϳϵϲ 
Disposals (ϭϰ,ϵϭϰͿ (Ϯϲ,ϲϮϮͿ 
Depreciation (ϲϮ,ϰϬϵͿ (Ϯϭ,ϯϮϰͿ 

Carrying amount at end ϯϱϵ,ϲϭϳ ϯϲϭ,ϳϭϬ 
Moƚoƌ ǀehicleƐ   

Carrying amount at beginning ϵ,Ϯϭϱ ϭϭ,ϯϰϭ 
Disposals (ϳ,ϰϴϳͿ ‐ 
Depreciation (ϭ,ϳϮϴͿ (Ϯ,ϭϮϲͿ 

Carrying amount at end ‐ ϵ,Ϯϭϱ 
   
Total written down amount ϯ,ϮϰϬ,ϴϰϵ ϯ,ϭϵϱ,ϭϬϴ 

 
cͿ Changes in estimates 

During the financial year, the company assessed estimates used for property, plant and equipment including useful lives, residual 
values, and depreciation methods. 
 
There were no changes in estimates for the current reporting period.  
 
NŽƚe ϭϲ RighƚͲŽfͲƵƐe aƐƐeƚƐ 
 
Right‐of‐use assets are measured at amounts equal to the present value of enforceable future payments on the adoption date, 
adjusted for lease incentives, make‐good provisions, and initial direct costs. 
 
The company derecognises right‐of‐use assets at the termination of the lease period or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to be derived from the use of the underlying asset. 
 

aͿ Carrying amounts ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

LeaƐed land and bƵildingƐ   

At cost ϳϭϮ,ϬϬϲ ‐ 
Less: accumulated depreciation (Ϯϯϵ,ϴϲϲͿ ‐ 
Total written down amount ϰϳϮ,ϭϰϬ ‐ 
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bͿ Reconciliation of carrying amounts  
LeaƐed land and bƵildingƐ Note ϮϬϮϬ  

Ψ 
ϮϬϭϵ  

Ψ 
Carrying amount at beginning  - - 
Initial recognition on transition ϯdͿ ϲϳϵ,ϳϵϲ ‐ 
Accumulated depreciation on adoption ϯdͿ (ϮϬϰ,ϲϴϯͿ ‐ 
Remeasurement adjustments  ϯϮ,ϮϭϬ ‐ 
Depreciation  (ϯϱ,ϭϴϯͿ ‐ 
Carrying amount at end  ϰϳϮ,ϭϰϬ ‐ 

 
 
NŽƚe ϭϳ IŶƚaŶgible aƐƐeƚƐ 
 
 

aͿ Carrying amounts  ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

FƌanchiƐe fee   

At cost ϴϬϯ,Ϭϲϳ ϴϬϯ,Ϭϲϳ 
Less: accumulated amortisation (ϲϱϬ,ϴϱϮͿ (ϱϵϭ,ϭϱϴͿ 

Total written down amount ϭϱϮ,Ϯϭϱ Ϯϭϭ,ϵϬϵ 
 

 
bͿ Reconciliation of carrying amounts 

  

FƌanchiƐe fee   

Carrying amount at beginning Ϯϭϭ,ϵϬϵ ϮϬϮ,ϱϰϬ 
Additions ‐ ϲϱ,ϵϭϵ 
Amortisation (ϱϵ,ϲϵϰͿ (ϱϲ,ϱϱϬͿ 

Carrying amount at end ϭϱϮ,Ϯϭϱ Ϯϭϭ,ϵϬϵ 
   
Total written down amount ϭϱϮ,Ϯϭϱ Ϯϭϭ,ϵϬϵ 

 
cͿ Changes in estimates 

During the financial year, the company assessed estimates used for intangible assets including useful lives, residual values, and 
amortisation methods.  
 
There were no changes in estimates for the current reporting period.  
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NŽƚe ϭϴ Taǆ aƐƐeƚƐ aŶd liabiliƚieƐ 
 

aͿ Current tax ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
 Ψ Ψ 
 (ϮϯϯͿ (ϭϯ,ϳϲϲͿ 

 
bͿ Deferred tax 

Movement in the companyΖs deferred tax balances for the year ended ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ: 
 

 
 
 
Defeƌƌed ƚaǆ aƐƐeƚƐ 

ϯϬ June 
ϮϬϭϵ 

 
 

Ψ 

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss 
 

Ψ 

Recognised 
in equity 

 
 

Ψ 

ϯϬ June 
ϮϬϮϬ 

 
 

Ψ 
‐ expense accruals ϰ,ϭϮϴ (ϱϰϵͿ ‐ ϯ,ϱϳϵ 
‐ employee provisions ϴ,ϴϰϴ ϭ,ϰϳϬ ‐ ϭϬ,ϯϭϴ 
‐ make‐good provision ‐ ϰ,ϴϯϭ ‐ ϰ,ϴϯϭ 
‐ lease liability ‐ (ϭϮ,ϴϰϭͿ ϭϳϯ,ϵϴϱ ϭϲϭ,ϭϰϰ 
‐ carried‐forward capital losses ϯϲ,ϰϴϭ (Ϯ,ϬϵϯͿ ‐ ϯϰ,ϯϴϴ 

Total deferred tax assets ϰϵ,ϰϱϳ (ϵ,ϭϴϮͿ ϭϳϯ,ϵϴϱ Ϯϭϰ,ϮϲϬ 
 
Defeƌƌed ƚaǆ liabiliƚieƐ 

    

‐ deductible prepayments Ϯ,ϱϯϳ (ϯϳϴͿ ‐ Ϯ,ϭϱϵ 
‐ property, plant and equipment ϱϬ,ϴϲϭ Ϯϳ,ϰϵϮ ‐ ϳϴ,ϯϱϯ 
‐ right‐of‐use assets ‐ (ϳ,ϵϬϬͿ ϭϯϬ,ϲϱϲ ϭϮϮ,ϳϱϲ 

Total deferred tax liabilities ϱϯ,ϯϵϴ ϭϵ,Ϯϭϰ ϭϯϬ,ϲϱϲ ϮϬϯ,Ϯϲϴ 
     
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitiesͿ (ϯ,ϵϰϭͿ (Ϯϴ,ϯϵϲͿ ϰϯ,ϯϮϵ ϭϬ,ϵϵϮ 

 
Movement in the companyΖs deferred tax balances for the year ended ϯϬ June ϮϬϭϵ: 
 

 ϯϬ June ϮϬϭϴ Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised 
in equity 

ϯϬ June 
ϮϬϭϵ 

 
Defeƌƌed ƚaǆ aƐƐeƚƐ 

 
Ψ 

 
Ψ 

 
Ψ 

 
Ψ 

‐ expense accruals ϱ,ϭϵϭ (ϭ,ϬϲϯͿ ‐ ϰ,ϭϮϴ 
‐ employee provisions ϰ,ϵϭϵ ϯ,ϵϮϵ ‐ ϴ,ϴϰϴ 
‐ carried‐forward capital losses ϯϲ,ϰϴϮ (ϭͿ ‐ ϯϲ,ϰϴϭ 

Total deferred tax assets ϰϲ,ϱϵϮ Ϯ,ϴϲϱ ‐ ϰϵ,ϰϱϳ 
 
Defeƌƌed ƚaǆ liabiliƚieƐ 

    

‐ deductible prepayments Ϯ,ϲϭϱ (ϳϴͿ ‐ Ϯ,ϱϯϳ 
‐ property, plant and equipment ϭϯ,ϵϱϱ ϯϲ,ϵϬϲ ‐ ϱϬ,ϴϲϭ 

Total deferred tax liabilities ϭϲ,ϱϳϬ ϯϲ,ϴϮϴ ‐ ϱϯ,ϯϵϴ 
     
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitiesͿ ϯϬ,ϬϮϮ (ϯϯ,ϵϲϯͿ ‐ (ϯ,ϵϰϭͿ 



Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
 

ϰϲ  

cͿ Uncertainty over income tax treatments 
As at balance date, there are no tax rulings, or interpretations of tax law, which may result in tax treatments being over‐ruled by 
the taxation authorities. 
 
The company believes that its accrual for income taxes is adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, 
including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. 
 
NŽƚe ϭϵ Tƌade cƌediƚŽƌƐ aŶd Žƚheƌ ƉaǇableƐ 
 
Where the company is liable to settle an amount within ϭϮ months of reporting date, the liability is classified as current. All other 
obligations are classified as non‐current. 
 

aͿ Current liabilities ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Trade creditors ϭϭ,ϱϵϳ ϭϳ,ϴϵϴ 
Other creditors and accruals ϭϯϯ,Ϯϲϭ ϲϱϭ,ϯϮϵ 
 ϭϰϰ,ϴϱϴ ϲϲϵ,ϮϮϳ 
 
bͿ Non‐current liabilities 

  

Other creditors and accruals ϱϵ,ϯϮϵ ϭϮϯ,ϵϱϭ 
 ϱϵ,ϯϮϵ ϭϮϯ,ϵϱϭ 

 
NŽƚe ϮϬ     LŽaŶƐ aŶd bŽƌƌŽǁiŶgƐ 
 

aͿ Current liabilities ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

     Secured bank loans ϮϮϰ,ϵϭϳ ϰϱ,ϰϲϬ 
 ϮϮϰ,ϵϭϳ ϰϱ,ϰϲϬ 
bͿ Non‐current liabilities 
 

  

      Secured bank loans ϭ,ϰϳϮ,Ϭϰϭ ϭ,ϰϳϯ,Ϭϴϵ 
 ϭ,ϰϳϮ,Ϭϰϭ ϭ,ϰϳϯ,Ϭϴϵ 

 
cͿ Terms and repayments schedule 

 
 Nominal 

interest rate 
Year of 

maturity 
ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ ϯϬ June ϮϬϭϵ 

Face Value Carrying 
value 

Face 
Value 

Carrying 
Value 

Secured 
bank loans 

ϯ.Ϯϲй-ϯ.ϱϮй ϮϬϯϯ-ϮϬϯϱ ϭ,ϲϵϲ,ϵϱϴ ϭ,ϲϵϲ,ϵϱϴ ϭ,ϱϭϴ,ϱϰϵ ϭ,ϱϭϴ,ϱϰϵ 
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NŽƚe Ϯϭ LeaƐe liabiliƚieƐ 
 
Lease liabilities were measured at amounts equal to the present value of enforceable future payments of the term reasonably 
expected to be exercised, discounted at the appropriate incremental borrowing rate on the adoption date. The discount rate used 
on recognition was ϱ.ϯϵй. 
 
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of enforceable future payments takes into account the particular 
circumstances applicable to the underlying leased assets (including the amount, lease term, economic environment, and other 
relevant factorsͿ. 
 
The company has applied judgement in estimating the remaining lease term including the effects of any extension or termination 
options reasonably expected to be exercised, applying hindsight where appropriate. 
 
 LeaƐe Ɖoƌƚfolio 
The companyΖs lease portfolio includes: 
 
Marcoola branch 
 
 
 
 
Pomona branch 

The lease agreement is a non‐cancellable lease with an initial term of five years which 
commenced in April ϮϬϬϵ. An extension option term of five years was exercised in April ϮϬϭϵ. 
The lease has two further five-year extension options available. The company is reasonably 
certain to exercise the final five‐year lease terms. 
 
The lease agreement is a non‐cancellable lease with an initial term of five years which 
commenced in April ϮϬϭϳ. The lease has two further five-year extension options available. The 
company is reasonably certain to exercise the final five‐year lease terms. 

 
The company assesses at the lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise extension options. The 
company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant change in 
circumstances within its control. 
 

aͿ Lease liability measurement 
Where the company is a lessee for the premises to conduct its business, extension options are included in the lease term except 
when the company is reasonably certain not to exercise the extension option. This is due to the significant disruption of relocating 
premises and the loss on disposal of leasehold improvements fitted out in the demised leased premises. 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
LeaƐe liabiliƚieƐ on ƚƌanƐiƚion Note Ψ Ψ 

Balance at the beginning (finance lease liabilitiesͿ 
Initial recognition on AASB ϭϲ transition 

 
ϯdͿ 

- 
ϲϯϮ,ϲϳϮ 

‐ 
‐ 

Remeasurement adjustments  ϭϯ,ϳϮϰ ‐ 
Lease payments ‐ interest  ϯϮ,ϲϵϳ ‐ 
Lease payments  (ϱϵ,ϯϬϲͿ ‐ 

  ϲϭϵ,ϳϴϳ - 
 

bͿ Current lease liabilities 
 

Property lease liabilities ϱϵ,ϱϰϯ ‐ 
Unexpired interest (Ϯϴ,ϵϰϯͿ - 

 ϯϬ,ϲϬϬ - 
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cͿ Non‐current lease liabilities ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Property lease liabilities ϳϳϵ,ϵϬϵ - 

Unexpired interest (ϭϵϬ,ϳϮϮͿ - 
 ϱϴϵ,ϭϴϳ - 

 
dͿ Maturity analysis   
‐ Not later than ϭϮ months ϱϵ,ϱϰϯ - 
‐ Between ϭϮ months and ϱ years Ϯϰϲ,ϳϬϵ - 
‐ Greater than ϱ years ϱϯϯ,ϮϬϬ - 

Total undiscounted lease payments ϴϯϵ,ϰϱϮ - 
Unexpired interest (Ϯϭϵ,ϲϲϱͿ - 

Present value of lease liabilities ϲϭϵ,ϳϴϳ - 
 

eͿ Impact on the current reporting period 
During the financial year, the company has mandatorily adopted AASB ϭϲ for the measurement and recognition of its leases. The 
primary impact on the profit or loss is that lease payments are split between interest and principal payments and the right‐of‐use 
asset depreciates. This is in contrast to the comparative reporting period where lease payments under AASB ϭϭϳ were expensed 
as incurred. The following note presents the impact on the profit or loss for the current reporting period. 
 
ComƉaƌiƐon Ƶndeƌ cƵƌƌenƚ AASB ϭϲ and foƌmeƌ AASB ϭϭϳ 
 
The net impact for the current reporting period is a decrease in profit after tax of Ψϲ,Ϯϴϰ 
 

 AASB ϭϭϳ 
expense not 
recognised 

Impact on 
current 
reporting 
period 
 

AASB ϭϲ 
expense now 
recognised 
 

Profit or loss ‐ increase (decreaseͿ in expenses    
‐ Occupancy and associated costs ϱϵ,ϯϬϲ (ϱϵ,ϯϬϲͿ ‐ 
‐ Depreciation and amortisation expense ‐ ϯϱ,ϭϴϯ ϯϱ,ϭϴϯ 
‐ Finance costs ‐ ϯϮ,ϳϵϭ ϯϮ,ϳϵϭ 
Increase in expenses ‐ before tax ϱϵ,ϯϬϲ ϴ,ϲϲϴ ϲϳ,ϵϳϰ 
‐ Income tax expense / (creditͿ ‐ current (ϭϲ,ϯϬϵͿ ϭϲ,ϯϬϵ ‐ 
‐ Income tax expense / (creditͿ ‐ deferred ‐ (ϭϴ,ϲϵϯͿ (ϭϴ,ϲϵϯͿ 
Increase in expenses – after tax ϰϮ,ϵϵϳ ϲ,Ϯϴϰ ϰϵ,Ϯϴϭ 
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NŽƚe ϮϮ PƌŽǀiƐiŽŶƐ 
 
As at the reporting date, the make‐good of the leased premises is not expected to be wholly settled within ϭϮ months. The 
balance is classified as non‐current. 
 

aͿ Non‐current liabilities ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
  Ψ Ψ 
Make‐good on leased premises ϭϴ,ϱϴϬ ‐ 

 ϭϴ,ϱϴϬ ‐ 
 

bͿ Make‐good provision 
In accordance with the branch lease agreements, the company must restore the leased premises to their original condition before 
the expiry of the lease term. 
 
The company has estimated the provision based on experience and consideration of the expected future costs to remove all 
fittings and the ATM as well as cost to remedy any damages caused during the removal process. 

 
cͿ Changes in estimates 

During the financial year, the company re‐assessed the lease agreement with respect to the make‐good and restoration clauses. 
The estimated costs were revised with respect to an analysis of restoration costs of bank branches completed by Bendigo BankΖs 
property team. The provision was previously assessed as nil or immaterial with no provision recognised in the accounts. 
 
In addition, during the financial year, the company has re‐assessed the estimates and assumptions. The company has prepared 
further detailed estimates of the expected future costs, the discount rate used in recognising the present value, and the passage 
of time until settlement has now been extended following the reasonable expectation of exercising an additional lease option. 
 
The lease for the Marcoola branch is due to expire on ϯϭ March ϮϬϯϰ, while the lease for the Pomona branch is due to expire on 
ϯϭ March ϮϬϯϮ at which time it is expected the face‐value costs to restore the premises will fall due.  
 
The financial effect of the reassessment, assuming no changes in the above judgements and estimates, on actual and expected 
finance costs and provisions was as follows: 
 

Pƌofiƚ oƌ loƐƐ ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϮϭ ϮϬϮϮ ϮϬϮϯ ϮϬϮϰн 
Expense:      

- Finance costs ϵϰ ϵϯϲ ϵϴϰ ϭ,Ϭϯϰ ϭϮ,ϵϰϲ 
Sƚaƚemenƚ of financial ƉoƐiƚion 

- Make-good provision ϭϴ,ϱϴϬ ϭϵ,ϱϭϲ ϮϬ,ϱϬϬ Ϯϭ,ϱϯϰ ϯϰ,ϰϴϬ 

 
  

 
PƌoǀiƐion 

ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Balance at the beginning - - 
Present value unwinding ϵϰ - 
Provision remeasurements ϭϴ,ϰϴϲ - 
 ϭϴ,ϱϴϬ - 
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NŽƚe Ϯϯ EŵƉlŽǇee beŶefiƚƐ 
 

aͿ Current liabilities ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Provision for annual leave ϮϬ,ϲϬϴ ϭϮ,Ϯϱϭ 
Provision for long service leave ϭϵ,Ϭϳϱ ϭϵ,ϵϮϰ 
 ϯϵ,ϲϴϯ ϯϮ,ϭϳϱ 

 
bͿ Key judgement and assumptions 

EmƉloǇee aƚƚƌiƚion ƌaƚeƐ 
The company uses historical employee attrition rates in determining the probability of an employee, at a given date, achieving 
continuous employment eligible for entitlement in accordance with long service leave legislation. 
 
NŽƚe Ϯϰ IƐƐƵed caƉiƚal 
 

aͿ Issued capital    
 ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
 Number Ψ Number Ψ 
Ordinary shares – fully 
paid 

ϭ,ϲϳϮ,ϵϴϴ ϭ,ϲϳϮ,ϵϴϴ ϭ,ϲϳϮ,ϵϴϴ ϭ,ϲϳϮ,ϵϴϴ 

Bonus shares – fully paid ϯϭ.ϮϱϬ -   
Less: equity raising costs - (ϰϵ,ϵϮϭͿ - (ϰϵ,ϵϮϭͿ 
 ϭ,ϳϬϰ,Ϯϯϴ ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ ϭ,ϳϬϰ,Ϯϯϴ ϭ,ϲϮϯ,Ϭϲϳ 

 
bͿ Rights attached to issued capital 

OƌdinaƌǇ ƐhaƌeƐ 
 
Voting rights 
Subject to some limited exceptions, each member has the right to vote at a general meeting. 
 
On a show of hands or a poll, each member attending the meeting (whether they are attending the meeting in person or by 
attorney, corporate representative or proxyͿ has one vote, regardless of the number of shares held. However, where a person 
attends a meeting in person and is entitled to vote in more than one capacity (for example, the person is a member and has also 
been appointed as proxy for another memberͿ that person may only exercise one vote on a show of hands. On a poll, that person 
may exercise one vote as a member and one vote for each other member that person represents as duly appointed attorney, 
corporate representative or proxy. 
 
The purpose of giving each member only one vote, regardless of the number of shares held, is to reflect the nature of the 
company as a community based company, by providing that all members of the community who have contributed to the 
establishment and ongoing operation of the Community bank branch have the same ability to influence the operation of the 
company. 
 
Dividends 
Generally, dividends are payable to members in proportion to the amount of the share capital paid up on the shares held by them, 
subject to any special rights and restrictions for the time being attaching to shares. The franchise agreement with Bendigo Bank 
contains a limit on the level of profits or funds that may be distributed to shareholders. There is also a restriction on the payment 
of dividends to certain shareholders if they have a prohibited shareholding interest (see belowͿ. 
 
Transfer 
Generally, ordinary shares are freely transferable. However, the directors have a discretion to refuse to register a transfer of 
shares.  
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Subject to the foregoing, shareholders may transfer shares by a proper transfer effected in accordance with the company’s 
constitution and the CoƌƉoƌaƚionƐ Acƚ ϮϬϬϭ͘ 
 
Pƌohibiƚed Ɛhaƌeholding inƚeƌeƐƚ 
A person must not have a prohibited shareholding interest in the company. 
 
In summary, a person has a prohibited shareholding interest if any of the following applies: 
 

- They control or own ϭϬй or more of the shares in the company (the ΗϭϬй limitΗͿ. 
- In the opinion of the board they do not have a close connection to the community or communities in which the company 

predominantly carries on business (the Ηclose connection testΗͿ. 
-  

As with voting rights, the purpose of this prohibited shareholding provision is to reflect the community‐based nature of the 
company. 
 
Where a person has a prohibited shareholding interest, the voting and dividend rights attaching to the shares in which the person 
(and his or her associatesͿ have a prohibited shareholding interest, are suspended. 
 
The board has the power to request information from a person who has (or is suspected by the board of havingͿ a legal or 
beneficial interest in any shares in the company or any voting power in the company, for the purpose of determining whether a 
person has a prohibited shareholding interest. If the board becomes aware that a member has a prohibited shareholding interest, 
it must serve a notice requiring the member (or the memberΖs associateͿ to dispose of the number of shares the board considers 
necessary to remedy the breach. If a person fails to comply with such a notice within a specified period (that must be between 
three and six monthsͿ, the board is authorised to sell the specified shares on behalf of that person. The holder will be entitled to 
the consideration from the sale of the shares, less any expenses incurred by the board in selling or otherwise dealing with those 
shares. 
 
In the constitution, members acknowledge and recognise that the exercise of the powers given to the board may cause 
considerable disadvantage to individual members, but that such a result may be necessary to enforce the prohibition. 
 

 
Note 

ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Balance at beginning of reporting period  (ϭϬϬ,ϲϱϲͿ (ϮϮϬ,ϮϳϬͿ 

Adjustment for transition to AASB ϭϲ ϯdͿ (ϭϭϰ,ϮϯϬͿ - 
Net profit after tax from ordinary activities  ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ 
Dividends provided for or paid ϯϬaͿ (ϳϲ,ϲϵϭͿ (ϴϱ,ϮϭϮͿ 

Balance at end of reporting period  (ϲϮ,ϯϰϲͿ (ϭϬϬ,ϲϱϲͿ 
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NŽƚe Ϯϲ RecŽŶciliaƚiŽŶ Žf caƐh flŽǁƐ fƌŽŵ ŽƉeƌaƚiŶg acƚiǀiƚieƐ 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Net profit after tax from ordinary activities ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ 

Adjustments for:   

‐ Depreciation ϭϲϮ,ϯϴϬ ϱϱ,ϴϭϬ 
‐ Amortisation ϱϵ,ϲϵϰ ϱϲ,ϱϱϬ 
‐ Loss on disposal of non‐current assets ϭϰ,ϵϭϰ Ϯϲ,ϲϮϮ 
Changes in assets and liabilities:   

‐ (IncreaseͿ/decrease in trade and other receivables (ϯϲ,ϰϭϯͿ (ϱϳ,ϲϭϭͿ 

‐ (IncreaseͿ/decrease in other assets ϴϰ,ϱϰϰ ϯ,Ϭϴϲ 
‐ Increase/(decreaseͿ in trade and other payables ϳϯ,ϮϬϳ ϲϱϴ,ϱϮϰ 
‐ Increase/(decreaseͿ in employee benefits ϳ,ϱϬϳ ϭϰ,Ϯϴϲ 
‐ Increase/(decreaseͿ in provisions ϵϱ ‐ 
‐ Increase/(decreaseͿ in tax liabilities (ϯ,ϵϰϭͿ (ϭϮ,ϬϮϱͿ 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities ϱϵϭ,Ϯϭϴ ϵϱϬ,Ϭϲϴ 

 
 
NŽƚe Ϯϳ FiŶaŶcial IŶƐƚƌƵŵeŶƚƐ 
 
The following shows the carrying amounts for all financial instruments at amortised costs. It does not include fair value 
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable 
approximation of fair value. 

 
Financial assets Note ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
  Ψ Ψ 
Trade and other receivables  ϵϴ,ϳϮϵ ϲϭ,ϭϴϵ 
Cash and cash equivalents ϭϯ ϭϯϲ,ϴϰϱ ϯϱϵ,ϱϮϰ 
Term deposits ϭϯ ϭϰ,ϱϳϭ ϭϰ,Ϯϴϳ 

  ϮϱϬ,ϭϰϱ ϰϯϱ,ϬϬϬ 
Financial liabilities    

Trade and other payables ϭϵ ϭϭ,ϱϵϳ ϭϳ,ϴϵϴ 
Secured bank loans ϮϬ ϭ,ϲϵϲ,ϵϱϴ ϭ,ϱϭϴ,ϱϰϵ 
Lease liabilities Ϯϭ ϲϭϵ,ϳϴϳ - 

  Ϯ,ϯϮϴ,ϯϰϮ ϭ,ϱϯϲ,ϰϰϳ 
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NŽƚe Ϯϴ AƵdiƚŽƌΖƐ ƌeŵƵŶeƌaƚiŽŶ 
 
Amount received or due and receivable by the auditor of the company for the financial year. 
 

 
AƵdiƚ and ƌeǀieǁ ƐeƌǀiceƐ 

ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

‐ Audit and review of financial statements (AFSͿ Ϯ,ϰϬϬ - 
‐ Audit and review of financial statements (RSDͿ ϰ,ϬϬϬ ϳ,ϮϬϬ 

 ϲ,ϰϬϬ ϳ,ϮϬϬ 
Non aƵdiƚ ƐeƌǀiceƐ   

‐ General advisory services Ϯ,ϯϭϱ - 

 Ϯ,ϯϭϱ - 
   
 
Total auditorΖs remuneration 

ϴ,ϳϭϱ ϳ,ϮϬϬ 

 
 
NŽƚe Ϯϵ Relaƚed ƉaƌƚieƐ 
 

aͿ Details of key management personnel 
 
The directors of the company during the financial year: 
Rick Cooper 
David Green 
Elizabeth Reynolds 
Guy Hamilton  
Tony Freeman  
Patricia Radge  
Toby Bicknell 
Jay Pashley 
 

bͿ Key management personnel compensation 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϮϭ 
Key management personnel compensation comprised the 
following: 

Ψ Ψ 

Short-term employee benefits Ϯϳ,ϮϱϬ - 
 Ϯϳ,ϮϱϬ - 

 
Compensation of the companyΖs key management personnel includes salaries and contributions to a post‐employment 
superannuation contribution plan. 
 

cͿ Related party transactions 
No director or related entity has entered a material contract with the company. 
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NŽƚe ϯϬ DiǀideŶdƐ ƉƌŽǀided fŽƌ Žƌ Ɖaid 
 

aͿ Dividends provided for and paid during the period 
The following dividends were provided for and paid to shareholders during the reporting period as presented in the statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows. 
 

 ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ ϯϬ June ϮϬϭϵ 
Cents Ψ Cents Ψ 

Fully franked dividend ϰ.ϱϬ ϳϲ,ϲϵϭ ϱ.ϬϬ ϴϱ,Ϯϭϱ 
Total dividends for and paid during the 
financial year 

ϰ.ϱϬ ϳϲ,ϲϵϭ ϱ.ϬϬ ϴϱ,Ϯϭϱ 

 
The tax rate at which dividends have been franked is Ϯϳ.ϱй (ϮϬϭϵ: Ϯϳ.ϱйͿ. 
 

bͿ Franking account balance ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Fƌanking cƌediƚƐ aǀailable foƌ ƐƵbƐeƋƵenƚ ƌeƉoƌƚing ƉeƌiodƐ   

Franking account balance at the beginning of the financial year Ϯϳϳ,ϯϳϭ ϮϭϬ,ϬϬϰ 

Franking transactions during the financial year:   

 ‐  Franking credits (debitsͿ arising from income taxes paid (refundedͿ ϯϳ,ϰϲϯ ϵϵ,ϲϴϵ 

 ‐  Franking debits from the payment of franked distributions (Ϯϵ,ϬϵϬͿ (ϯϮ,ϯϮϮͿ 

Franking account balance at the end of the financial year Ϯϴϱ,ϳϰϰ Ϯϳϳ,ϯϳϭ 
Franking transactions that will arise subsequent to the financial year end:   

‐ Franking credits (debitsͿ that will arise from payment (refundͿ of 
income tax 

ϭϯ,ϯϯϲ (ϭϯ,ϳϲϲͿ 

Franking credits available for future reporting periods Ϯϵϵ,ϬϴϬ Ϯϲϯ,ϲϬϱ 
The ability to utilise franking credits is dependent upon the companyΖs ability to declare dividends. 

 
 
NŽƚe ϯϭ EaƌŶiŶgƐ Ɖeƌ Ɛhaƌe 
 

aͿ Basic and diluted earnings per share 
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share has been based on the following profit attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding. 
 

 ϮϬϮϬ 
Ψ 

ϮϬϭϵ 
Ψ 

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders ϮϮϵ,Ϯϯϭ ϮϬϰ,ϴϮϲ 
 Number Number 

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares ϭ,ϳϬϰ,Ϯϯϴ ϭ,ϳϬϰ,Ϯϯϴ 
 Cents Cents 

Basic and diluted earnings per share ϭϯ.ϰϱ ϭϮ.ϬϮ 



Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
 

ϱϱ  

NŽƚe ϯϮ  CŽŵŵiƚŵeŶƚƐ 
 

aͿ Lease commitments 
Following adoption of AASB ϭϲ as of ϭ July ϮϬϭϵ, all lease commitment information and amounts for the financial year ending ϯϬ 
June ϮϬϮϬ can now be found in ΖLease liabilitiesΖ (Note ϮϭͿ. 
 

Operating lease commitments ‐ lessee ϮϬϮϬ ϮϬϭϵ 
Non‐cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial 
statements 

Ψ Ψ 

Payable ‐ minimum lease payments:   
- not later than ϭϮ months ‐ ϵϱ,ϰϲϭ 
- between ϭϮ months and ϱ years ‐ ϯϮϮ,Ϭϰϴ 

Minimum lease payments payable ‐ ϰϭϳ,ϱϬϵ 

bͿ Other commitments 
The company has no other commitments contracted for which would be provided for in future reporting periods. 
 
NŽƚe ϯϯ CŽŶƚiŶgeŶcieƐ 
 
There were no contingent liabilities or contingent assets at the date of this report to affect the financial 
statements. 
 
NŽƚe ϯϰ SƵbƐeƋƵeŶƚ eǀeŶƚƐ 
 
There have been no significant events occurring after the reporting period which may affect either the companyΖs operations or 
the results of those operations or the companyΖs state of affairs. 



 

 

 

 

Sunshine Coast Financial Services Limited 
NSX Report 
FŽƌ ƚhe Ǉeaƌ eŶded ϯϬ JƵŶe ϮϬϮϬ 
 
Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited is a public company incorporated in Australia and listed on the National 
Stock Exchange of Australia (NSXͿ. 
 
Shareholding 
The following table shows the number of shareholders, segregated into various categories based on the total number of shares 
held. 
 

Number of 
shares held 

Number of 
shareholders 

Number of 
shares held 

ϭ to ϭ,ϬϬϬ ϯϱϴ ϮϮϲ,Ϭϭϯ 

ϭ,ϬϬϭ to ϱ,ϬϬϬ Ϯϰϯ ϱϬϵ,ϲϵϵ 
ϱ,ϬϬϭ to ϭϬ,ϬϬϬ ϯϱ Ϯϰϳ,ϴϴϰ 
ϭϬ,ϬϬϭ to ϭϬϬ,ϬϬϬ ϯϮ ϳϮϬ,ϲϰϮ 
ϭϬϬ,ϬϬϭ and over - - 

Total Shareholders ϲϲϴ ϭ,ϳϬϰ,Ϯϯϴ 

 
Equity securities 
Each of the above shareholders are entitled to ϭ vote, irrespective of the number of shares held. 
 
There are no substantial shareholders (holding more than ϱй of voting rightsͿ as each shareholder is entitled to ϭ vote. Normally 
holding more than ϱй of total issued shares would create a substantial shareholder, but this is not applicable due to the voting 
restrictions for the company. 
 
There are no restricted securities on issue. 
 
All shares on issue are ordinary shares fully paid to Ψϭ per share. There are no unquoted equity securities. 
 

Ten largest shareholders  
The following table shows the ϭϬ largest shareholders. 
 
Shareholder 

Number of 
fully paid 
shares held 

Percenta
ge of 
issued 
capital 

MR MURRAY WILLIAM BROWN н MRS LYNDAL JANE BROWN фHINTERNOOSA SUPER FUND A/Cх ϵϮ,ϳϳϲ ϱ.ϰϰ 
SCIPIO NOMINEES PTY LTD ϱϯ,ϱϮϱ ϯ.ϭϰ 
JENNIFRED PTY LTD фBROOMHALL SUPER FUND A/Cх ϰϯ,ϴϬϬ Ϯ.ϱϳ 
THOMAS LEIGH PTY LTD фTHE WARING FAMILY SUPERANNUATION FUND ACх ϯϳ,ϯϮϰ Ϯ.ϭϵ 
WINPAR HOLDINGS LIMITED ϯϯ,ϳϮϱ ϭ.ϵϴ 
ALISON DIANNE COMBER ϯϬ,ϰϲϵ ϭ.ϳϵ 
ZEDMONT PTY LTD фCOOPER COLLINS SUPER FUND ACх ϯϬ,Ϭϵϯ ϭ.ϳϳ 
WILLEY MCBRYDE PTY LTD фTHE WILLEY MCBRYDE SUPERANNUATION FUNDх ϯϬ,ϬϬϬ ϭ.ϳϲ 
JAMES HOWARD BELL Ϯϱ,ϬϬϬ ϭ.ϰϳ 
KEVIN JOHN FAGGOTTER н ELAINE KATHLEEN FAGGOTTER Ϯϭ,ϬϬϬ ϭ.Ϯϯ 

 ϯϵϳ,ϳϭϮ Ϯϯ.ϯϰ 
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Registered office and principal administrative office 
The registered office of the company is located at: ϭϭϰ Poinciana Avenue 
Tewantin QLD ϰϱϲϱ 
Phone: (ϬϳͿ ϱϰϰϬ ϱϮϴϵ 
 
The principal administrative office of the company is located at: ϭϭϰ Poinciana Avenue 
Tewantin QLD ϰϱϲϱ 
Phone: (ϬϳͿ ϱϰϰϬ ϱϮϴϵ 
 
Security register 
The security register (share registerͿ is kept at: 
RSD Registry PO Box ϯϬ 
Bendigo VIC ϯϱϱϮ 
Phone: (ϬϯͿ ϱϰϰϱ ϰϮϮϮ 
 
Company Secretary 
The company secretary is Patricia Radge. Patricia was appointed to the position of secretary on ϭ June ϮϬϭϴ. 
Qualifications, experience and expertise: Patricia holds a Bachelor of Business and her experience includes managing a small 
financial services company since April ϮϬϬϬ. 
 
Corporate governance 
The company has implemented various corporate governance practices, which include: 
The establishment of an Finance and Audit Committee. Members of the Finance and Audit Committee are: David Green, Rick 
Cooper and Patricia Radge. 
Director approval of operating budgets and monitoring of progress against these budgets; 
Ongoing Director training; and 
Bi‐monthly Director meetings to discuss performance and strategic plans. 
 
Annexure ϯ 
There are no material differences between the information in the companyΖs Annexure ϯ and the information in the financial 
documents in its Annual Report. 
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Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited 
Directors’’ Declaration 
 
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Sunshine Coast Community Financial Services Limited, we state that: 
 
In the opinion of the directors: 

aͿ the financial statements and notes of the company are in accordance with the CoƌƉoƌaƚionƐ Acƚ ϮϬϬϭ , including: 
i. giving a true and fair view of the companyΖs financial position as at ϯϬ June ϮϬϮϬ and of its performance for the 

financial year ended on that date; and 
ii. complying with Accounting Standards, the CoƌƉoƌaƚionƐ RegƵlaƚionƐ ϮϬϬϭ and other mandatory professional 

reporting requirements; and 
bͿ there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due 

and payable. 
cͿ the audited remuneration disclosures set out in the remuneration report section of the directorsΖ report comply with 

Accounting Standard AASB ϭϮϰ RelaWed PaUW\ DiVclRVXUeV and the CRUSRUaWiRnV RegXlaWiRnV 2001 . 
 
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors. 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Sunshine Coast 
Community Financial Services Limited 

ReƉŽƌƚ ŽŶ ƚhe aƵdiƚ Žf ƚhe fiŶaŶcial ƌeƉŽƌƚ 

Our opinion 
In our opinion, the accompan\ing financial report of Sunshine Coast Communit\ Financial Services 
Limited, is in accordance with the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ, including: 

 
i. giving a true and fair view of the compan\·s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its 

financial performance for the \ear ended on that date; and 
ii. compl\ing with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001. 

 
What we have audited 
Sunshine Coast Communit\ Financial Services Limited·s (the compan\) financial report comprises 
the: 

9 Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
9 Statement of financial position 
9 Statement of changes in equit\ 
9 Statement of cash flows 
9 Notes comprising a summar\ of significant accounting policies and other e[planator\ notes 
9 The directors' declaration of the compan\. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor͛s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. 

 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ. We are independent of the compan\ in accordance with the auditor 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ and the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES ϭϭϬ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants ;including Independence StandardsͿ (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

 
Other information 
The compan\ usuall\ prepares an annual report that will include the financial statements, directors· 
report and declaration and our independence declaration and audit report (the financial report). 
The annual report ma\ also include ́ other informationµ on the entit\·s operations and financial 
results and financial position as set out in the financial report, t\picall\ in a Chairman·s report 
and Manager·s report, and reports covering governance and shareholder matters. 

 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The annual report is e[pected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingl\ we will 
not e[press an\ form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
Our responsibilit\ is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materiall\ inconsistent with the financial 
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materiall\ misstated. 
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If we identif\ that a material inconsistenc\ appears to e[ist when we read the annual report (or 
become aware that the other information appears to be materiall\ misstated), we will discuss the 
matter with the directors and where we believe that a material misstatement of the other 
information e[ists, we will request management to correct the other information. 

 
Report on the remuneration report 
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the Directors· Report for the \ear ended 30 
June 2020. 

 
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Sunshine Coast Communit\ Financial Services Limited 
for the \ear ended 30 June 2020, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ. 

 
The directors of the compan\ are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration 
Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ. Our responsibilit\ is to e[press an 
opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. 

 
Key audit matters 
Ke\ audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the conte[t of 
our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the matter 
Application and recognition of AASB 16: Leases 
The compan\ adopted AASB ϭϲ͗ Leases as at 1 Jul\ 2019, and 
first reported this at 31 December 2019 during the half‐\ear 
review. 
 
The compan\ has assessed the impact that AASB 16 will have 
on its financial statements at 30 June 2020. The e[pected 
impact of AASB 16 is disclosed in Note 3 and 4 m) to the 
financial statements. 
 
A number of judgements have been applied and estimates 
made in determining the impact of the standard. 
 
Our ke\ audit matter was focused on the following areas of 
risk: 
 
� Leasing arrangements within the scope of AASB 16 are 

not identified or appropriatel\ included in the calculation 
of the transitional impact. 

� Specific assumptions applied to determine the discount 
rates and lease terms for each lease are inappropriate. 

� The underl\ing lease data used to calculate the 
transitional impact is incomplete and/or inaccurate. 

� The disclosures in the financial statements are 
insufficient, preventing investors from obtaining a clear 
understanding as to the transitional impact of the change 
in accounting standard. 

In responding to the identified ke\ audit matter, we 
completed the following audit procedures: 
 
� assessed the design and implementation of ke\ controls 

pertaining to the determination of the 
� AASB 16 transition impact disclosure. 
� assessed the appropriateness of the discount rates and 

lease terms applied in determining lease liabilities, 
including an\ underl\ing assumptions. 

� verified the accurac\ of the underl\ing lease data b\ 
agreeing the information directl\ back to original lease 
contracts or other supporting information, and checked 
the integrit\ and mechanical accurac\ of the AASB 16 
calculations for each lease through recalculation of the 
e[pected AASB 16 adjustment. 

� considered completeness b\ testing the reconciliation to 
the compan\·s operating lease commitments and b\ 
investigating ke\ service contracts to assess whether an\ 
contained a lease under AASB 16. 

� assessed whether the disclosures within the financial 
statements are appropriate in light of the requirements 
of AASB ϴ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors͘ 

 
Key observation 
We are satisfied that the disclosure of the impact of adoption 
of AASB ϭϲ͗ Leases is in accordance with the compan\·s 
accounting polic\ and the related disclosure of these items per 
Note 3 and 4 m) to the financial statements is appropriate. 
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the matter 
Revenue Share Model 
The compan\ is a franchise of Bendigo Bank. The franchise 
agreement provides for a share of interest, fee, and 
commission revenue earned b\ the compan\. 
 
Interest margin share is based on a funds transfer pricing 
methodolog\ which recognises that income is derived from 
deposits held, and that loans granted incur a funding cost. 
Fees are based on the compan\'s current fee schedule and 
commissions are based on the agreements in place. All margin 
revenue is recorded as non‐interest income when the 
compan\'s right to receive the pa\ment is established. 
 
The compan\ receives the Revenue Share from Bendigo Bank 
via a monthl\ profit share statement. 
 
Our Ke\ Audit Matter was focused on the following areas of 
risk: 
 
� Revenue is recognised appropriatel\ and in line with 

AASB ϭϱ Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 
� Reliance on third part\ auditor (Ernst & Young) to review 

the revenue share model. 

In responding to the identified Ke\ Audit Matter, we 
completed the following audit procedures: 
 
� We have obtained the monthl\ profit share statements 

from the entire \ear and anal\ticall\ assessed the 
e[istence, accurac\ and completeness of revenue. 

� Ernst & Young complete a Communit\ Bank Revenue 
Share Arrangements report on factual findings two‐ 
\earl\, which we review and determine that the scope 
and testing procedures were sufficient to enable reliance 
on the monthl\ profit share reports specificall\ relating to 
revenue. 

 
Key observation 
We are satisfied that the revenue share model has been 
sufficientl\ reviewed b\ an e[ternal auditor and the reliance 
can be placed on the monthl\ profit share reports. The 
compan\·s accounting polic\ relating to the revenue share 
model is detailed at Note 4 a) to the financial statements. 

 

There are no other ke\ audit matters to disclose for the 30 June 2020 audit. 

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report 
The directors of the compan\ are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that it gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act ϮϬϬϭ 
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessar\ to enable the preparation of the 
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the compan\·s abilit\ to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the compan\ or 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial report 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor·s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will alwa\s 
detect a material misstatement when it e[ists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individuall\ or in aggregate, the\ could reasonabl\ be e[pected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/home.asp[. This 
description forms part of our auditor·s report. 

 
 
 
Andrew Frewin Stewart          Joshua Griffin 
61 BXll SWUeeW, Bendigo, 3550         Lead Auditor 
Dated: 13 September 2020 61



 

 

 
 

Tewantin Communit\ Bank Branch 
114 Poinciana Avenue, Tewantin QLD 4565 

Phone: (07) 5440 5289 
https://www.bendigobank.com.au/branch/qld/tewantin‐noosa‐communit\‐bank‐branch/ 

 
 

Cooro\ Communit\ Bank Branch 
Phone: 36A Maple Street Cooro\ QLD 4563 

(07) 5447 7131 
https://www.bendigobank.com.au/branch/qld/cooro\‐communit\‐bank‐branch/ 

 
 

Pomona Communit\ Bank Branch 
3/3 Station Street Pomona QLD 4568 

Phone:  (07) 5485 1786 
https://www.bendigobank.com.au/branch/qld/pomona‐communit\‐bank‐branch/ 

 
Tewantin Communit\ Bank Branch 

1/930 David Low Wa\ Marcoola QLD 4564 
Phone:  (07) 5448 8582 

https://www.bendigobank.com.au/branch/qld/marcoola‐communit\‐bank‐branch/ 
 
 

Franchisee: Sunshine Coast Communit\ Financial sServices Limited: 
114 Poinciana Avenue, Tewantin QLD 4565 

Phone: (07) 5440 5289 
ABN: 12 100 576 261 
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